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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS 
P.O. Box 3401 

Decernber 18,2008 

The Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council 
Colonial Heights, Virginia 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Colonial Heights, 
Virginia (the "City") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, is transmitted herewith. This 
report was prepared by the Department of Financial Administration, which assumes full 
responsibility for the accuracy of data, completeness and the fairness of presentation. 
We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects, and that it is 
presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results as 
measured by the financial activity of its various governmental activities, business-type 
activities and funds. All disclosures necessary for a reader to fully understand the City's 
financial affairs have been included. 

The basic financial statements consist of government-wide and fund financial 
statements, notes to the basic financial statements and required supplementary 
information. The Statistical Section, which is unaudited, includes selected financial and 
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. 

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with provisions of 
the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget's Circular A;133 (Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations). The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the independent 
auditors' reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations are included in the Compliance Section of this CAFR. 

The financial reporting entity ir~cludes all funds of the primary government (i.e. the City 
of Colonial Heights as legally defined), as well as all of its component units. Component 
units are legally separate entities for which the primary government is financially 
accountable. The primary government provides a full range of services including 
general administration, public safety, public works, recreational activities, judicial 
functions, health and welfare activities, and community development activities. 

Discretely presented component units are reported in separate columns in the 
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from 
the primary government and to differentiate their financial position and results of 
operations from the primary government. The School Board of the City of Colonial 
Heights is reported as a discretely presented component unit. 



Additional information on the City's financial status can be found in the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis section of this report. 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

The City, with a land area of 8.14 square miles, is located in southeastern Virginia. The 
City is strategically located on Interstate 95 near its intersection with interstates, 185 and 
164, thus giving the City access to the East Coast's major markets. 

The City is less than 20 miles south of Virgil-lia's state capital, Richmond, and 120 miles 
south of the nation's capital, Washington, D.C. The City of Petersburg lies just across 
the Appomattox River which bisects the two cities, with Colonial Heights on the north 
bank. Richmond's deepwater terminal is approximately 15 miles north and the ports at 
Hampton Roads are some 80 miles to the southeast. 

The population of the City is estirnated at 17,796 as projected by the Virginia 
Employment Cornrr~issior~. The City is part of the Richmond Tri-Cities Metropolitan 
Statistical Area and as such has immediate access to the area's dynamic business 
complex. Richmond is a center for manufacturing, distribution and trade. State and 
Federal offices are located in Richmond and the area houses numerous corporate 
headquarters. 

In the immediate TFi-Cities area (Petersburg, Colonial Heights and Hopewell), 
government continues to be a major employer. Government facilities include Central 
State Hospital, Southside Virginia Training Center, Richard Bland College, and the 
United States Army Quartermaster Center and Fort Lee. 

The City has a civilian labor force of 9,608 and a current unemployment rate of 4.8%. 
The sul-rounding labor pool consists of tens of thousands of workers represerlting the 
entire spectrum of occupational groups and training opportunities in the area are 
abundant. 

The City's goal is to promote development and expansion of a diversified business base 
to enhance the quality and standard of living through expanded job opportunities and 
tax base. 

The City has seen 2.4 million square feet of retail, office and service industry 
development in the City's regionally based comrr~ercial center area known as 
"Southpark". Beginning with the opening of the area's only regional mall in 1989, the 
area has become a Mecca for giant retailers, specialty retailers and office space. The 
City currently has seer1 an additional hotel and a restaurant completed with a second 
hotel nearing completion. The area continues to expand with the planned expansiorls of 
existirlg big box stores. Transportation access and diversity have been two key 
elements of the area's sustained success. The City's older retail areas along the 
US1/301 corridor continue to benefit from the increased exposure of the City's regional 
emphasis. 



The City's Capital Improvement Program is centered around infrastructure 
improvemerlts to update or expand the current services. Other major projects include 
the renovation and expansion of the current courts building, and the replacement and 
improvement of infrastructure. 

The closure of the former larldfill has been completed and approved by the Virginia 
Department of Waste Management. This has opened up additional land for 
development in the Southpark commercial center. 

The City has endured the past economic challenges by maintaining a good local tax 
base that softened the effects of the Cornrnonwealth's budget and economic cutbacks. 
This year's financial operations continued all of current services and expanded the 
replacemerlt of Capital items. The real estate rate was lower to partially counter the 
increase in biannual real estate assessments. The City continues to adhere to a 
conservative budget in order to keep existing programs funded arld salaries of public 
employees competitive while dealing with budgetary challenges. 

Accounting System and Budgetary Controls 

In developing and refining the City's accounting system, consideration is giver1 to the 
adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to 
provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance regarding (a) the safeguarding of assets 
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and (b) the reliability of financial 
records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. 
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (a) the cost of a control should 
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (b) the evaluation of costs and benefits 
requires estimates and judgments by management. 

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. The City's internal 
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of 
proper recording of financial transactions. 

Budgetary control is maintained at the department line-item level by the encumbrance of 
estimated purchase amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. 
Purchase orders which result in an overrun of line item balances are not released until 
funds are appropriated or transferred to the specific line item. Open encumbrances are 
recorded as reservation of fund balances at June 30,2008. 

As required by law, each year the City Manager submits to City Council a 
recommended budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1. After an extensive budget 
study process and a public hearing to receive citizen input, City Council makes its 
decision on the adopted budget. 

City of Colonial Heights Pension Plan 

The City contributes to the Virginia Retirement System, an agent and cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, which covers all City employees. 



Capital Financing and Debt Service 

It is City policy to balance the needs for public facilities with the financial capability to 
provide for these needs. 

The City's Financial Managernent policies were adopted by City Council in 1995 and 
formally reviewed in 1999 and 2003. Included in these policies are the following debt 
guidelines: General Fund supported long-term debt will not exceed 4% of assessed 
value of real estate, General Fund supported long-term debt will not exceed 10% of 
governmental fund expenditures, and minimum amortization of General Fund supported 
long-term debt will be 50% within 10 years. The City monitors these ratios to ensure 
ongoing compliarlce with the debt policy. 

The Constitution of Virginia establishes a debt limit for Virginia cities of 10% of the 
assessed value of real estate. The City of Colonial Heights could incur debt in the 
amount of $1 68,097,949, but has curl-ently utilized 4 6.24% of its debt capacity. 

Long-term liabilities, excluding notes payable, compensated absences, retirement 
incentive programs and environmental liabilities, for all funds of the prirnary government 
as of June 30, 2008, totaled $27,295,000, of which $2,297,315 for Enterprise Fund 
purposes is considered self-supporting arld shown only as a liability of the respective 
fund. 

The City's bonds were maintained by all three rating agencies. These ratings are: 

Moody's Investor 
Service 

A1 

Standard Fitch Investors 
& Poor's Service, Inc. 

AA- AA- 

The City annually develops a Capital Improvements Program. Submitted projects are 
evaluated on a rating system using eleven criteria for funding recommendation. This 
annual rating by administrative staff is evaluated and approved by the City's Planning 
Commission and submitted to the governing body for future funding consideration. This 
list is used to allocate future bond and pay-as-you funding by the City. 

Cash Management 

The City follows the pooled cash concept, which maximizes investment flexibility, 
providing the best possible investrnent return. Cash temporarily idle during the year is 
invested in instruments as allowed by the Code of Virginia, Chapter 3, Title 26, and in 
accordance with the City's investment policy. The objectives of this policy are to assure 
safety and repayment of principal, provide flexibility to meet cash requirements, 
accomplish the maximum investment of all available funds ar~d allow the City to obtain 
the highest competitive yield on investments. 



Risk Management 

The City established an Insurance and Risk Management department in 1987. This 
department has expanded its original scope from the reduction of risk through adequate 
insurance to include the ongoing training of personnel and the reduction of hazards in 
the workplace. 

Certificates of Achievement for Excellence 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada 
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to 
the City of Colonial Heights, Virgiliia for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious 
national award recognizing conformance with highest standards for preparation of state 
and local government financial reports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an 
easily readable and efficier~tly organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, 
whose contents conform to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy both 
accountil-~g principles generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica and applicable 
legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. 
The City has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last 28 consecutive years 
(fiscal years ended 1980 through 2007). We believe our current report conforms to the 
Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA 
for consideration. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of City Council 
City of Colonial Heights, Virginia 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
remaining fund information of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia (City), as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in 
the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibilityof the City's management. 
Our responsibility is to express opirlions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Specifications for Audits of 
Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia. Those standards and specifications require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely 
presented component unit, each major fund, and the remaining fund information of the City as of 
June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, 
for the year then ended in conforrrlity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 15, 2008 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and 
our tests of its corrlpliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 



The Management's Discussion and Analysis (pages 11 to 21) and the required supplementary 
information (pages 55 to 61) are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are 
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The supplementary schedules, as listed 
in the Table of Contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U. S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-I 33, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a h o l e .  

'The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the Table of Contents, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. This information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Harrisonburg, Virginia 
December 15,2008 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2008 

The following discussion and analysis of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia (the City) financial 
performance provides an overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2008. It should be read in conjunction with the transmittal letter and the City's basic financial 
statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The City's total net assets, excluding those of its component unit, on the government-wide basis, 
totaled $38,434,361 at June 30, 2008. Of this amount, $6,648,101 may be used to meet oqgoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors, and $31,786,260 is invested in capital assets, net of related 
debt. 

On a government-wide basis for governmental activities, the City had expenses net of program 
revenues of $40,468,903, which totaled $3,441,809 greater than the general revenues of 
$37,027,094. 

At June 30, 2008, the City's governmental funds balance sheet reported fund balances of 
$1 5,647,765. Of this amount, $1 5,592,986 remains in the various governmental funds of the City as 
unreserved. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATElVlENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's financial statements present two types of statements, each with a different 
snapshot of the City's finances. The focus is on both the City as a whole (government-wide) and the 
fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements provide both short-term and 
long-term information about the City's overall financial status. The fund financials focus on the 
individual part of City government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the 
government-wide statements, which present a longer-term view. Presentation of both perspectives 
provides the user a broader overview, enhances the basis for comparisons, and better reflects the 
City's accountability. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement 
of Activities. These statements provide information about the City as a whole using the accrual 
basis of accounting, which is the method used by most private-sector enterprises. All current year 
revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. These statements allow readers to answer the question, "Is the City's position, as 
a whole, better or worse as a result of the year's activities?" 



One of the main goals of these two statements is to report the City's net assets and changes that 
affected net assets during the fiscal year. The change in the City's net assets, the difference 
between assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the City's financial health, or financial position. 
Increases or decreases in net assets are indicators of whether the City's financial health is 
improving or declining. Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the City's property tax base 
and the condition of the City's infrastructure should also be considered in assessing the overall 
financial health of the City. 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City's activity is classified as 
follows: 

Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including general 
government, judicial administration, public safety, public works, health and welfare, parks, recreation 
and cultural and community development departments. Property taxes, other local taxes, and 
federal and state grants finance most of these activities. 

Business-type activities -The City's water, sewage and solid waste operations are reported here as 
the City charges a fee to customers designed to cover all of the cost of services it provides. 

Component unit - The City includes a discretely presented component unit in this report, the School 
Board of the City of Colonial Heights. Although legally separate, the component unit is important 
because the City is financially accountable for it. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statement 
presentation more familiar. However, the focus is now on the City's most significant funds as well as 
fund types. The fund financial statements begin on page 24 and provide detailed information about 
the most significant funds, not the City as a whole. The City has two types of funds: 

Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are included with the governmental funds. 
Fund-based statements focus on how resources flow into and out of those funds and the balances 
left at year-end that are available for future spending. These funds are reported on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and other liquid assets that can readily be 
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term overview that 
helps the reader determine the financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the 
City's programs. The differences between goverr~mental activities as reported in the government- 
wide and fund financial statements are reconciled in Exhibits C and D on pages 25 and 27. 

Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for services it provides, whether to outside 
customers or to other units of the City, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. 
Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, utilize the accrual basis of accounting, and 
their statements provide both short and long-term financial information. 



The City's enterprise funds, one type of proprietary fund, is the same as the government-wide, 
business-type activities; however, the fund financial statements provide more detail and additional 
information, such as cash flows. The City's enterprise funds are the Water, Sewer, and Solid Waste 
funds. 

The following table presents a condensed compalison of net assets: 

Summary Statement of Net Assets 
June 30,2008 and 2007 

(In Millions) 

Total 
Governmental Business-type Primary Component 

Activities Activities Government Unit 

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 
Current and Other Assets $28.8 $22.6 $1.1 $1.0 $29.9 $23.6 $8.3 $5.9 
Capital Assets, net 42.1 43.2 11.5 11.9 53.6 55.1 14.7 11.1 
Total Assets 70.9 65.8 12.6 12.9 83.5 78.7 23.0 17.0 

Other Liabilities 18.9 14.3 .7 .5 19.6 14.8 3.8 3.0 
Non-current Liabilities 23.4 19.4 2.1 2.4 25.5 21.8 1.2 1.5 
Total Liabilities 42.3 33.7 2.8 2.9 45.1 36.6 5.0 4.5 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, 
net of related debt 22.6 22.5 9.2 9.2 31.8 31.7 14.7 11.1 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 6.0 9.5 0.6 0.8 6.6 10.3 3.3 1.4 
Total Net Assets $28.6 $32.0 $9.8 $10.0 $38.4 $42.0 $18.0 $12.5 



The City's combined net assets decreased from $42.0 million to $38.4 million. Net assets of the 
Governmental activities decreased by $3.4 million or 10.7%. Governmental activities unrestricted net 
assets, the portion of net assets that can be used to finance the day-to-day operations of the City 
totaled $6.0 million. Invested in capital assets, net of related deprecation and debt, represents the 
amount of capital assets owned by the City including infrastructure, net of any outstanding debt used 
to fund the asset purchase or construction. Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints 
on asset use are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, regulators, or are imposed 
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

The component unit net assets reflect an increase in City support due to the established funding 
agreement with the School Board. The City agreement provides that the School system receive 
50.73% of specified revenues. The increase also reflects increased amounts being established for 
pay-as-you-go infrastructure maintenance. 

The following table presents a condensed comparison of the changes in net assets: 

Summary Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2008 and 2007 

(In Millions) 

Governmental Business-type Total Primary Component 
Activities Activities Government Unit 

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 
Revenues: 

Program revenues: 
Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 
General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Other local taxes 
Payment from other governments 
Intergovernmental, non-categorical aid 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
General government 
Judicial administration 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Parks, recreation and cultural 
Community development 
Education 
Interest 
Water, sewer and solid waste 

Total expenses 
Change in Net Assets Before Transfers 

Transfers 
Change in Net Assets 
Net Assets, beginning 
Net Assets, ending 



The property tax classification, which comprised approximately42.3% of total revenue generated by 
governmental activities, includes real estate tax, the local portion of personal property tax, and public 
services corporation taxes. Real estate tax revenue, the largest source of revenue for the City 
totaled $16.8 million. The assessed value of real property in the City increased 20.1% for the 
calendar year due to a 2008 real estate reassessment and new construction. 

In 1998, the Commonwealth enacted the Personal Property Tax Relief Act. The Commonwealth's 
share of personal property taxes allocated to the City was 65% for the current fiscal year and is 
included in the intergovernmental category. Personal property tax revenue, including the 
Commonwealth share, totaled $4.2 million as compared to 3.9 million in fiscal year 2007. The net 
assessed value of taxable personal property increased $9 million or .7 percent from 2007 to 2008 
after an increase of $2.9 million from 2006 to 2007. Increased property tax collections reflect 
increased collection procedures developed by the City Treasurer's Office. 

Sales taxes, utility taxes, business and professional occupational taxes, prepared food and 
beverage taxes, transient room taxes, and utility taxes comprise the majority of other local taxes 
collected by the City. Other taxes comprised approximately 29.3% of total revenues generated for 
governmental activities. 

Operating grants and contributions comprised approximately 11.4% of governmental activities 
revenues. Street maintenance funds, funding received under House Bill 599 for law enforcement, 
and reimbursement for shared expenses of the constitutional officers are some of the major sources 
of revenue included in this category. 

Charges for services include items such as EMS transport fees, court fees, inspection fees, 
reimbursements for housing prisoners, and garbage collection fees. EMS fees were up by4.3% but 
still under projected revenues by $37,600 due to prior year changes in insurance coverage of 
transported patients. 



Revenue generated for governmental activities are presented below by category: 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

12% 
Intergovernmental Non- 

categorical Aid Charges for Services 
4% 

Miscellaneous 
2% 

Other Local Taxes 
29% 

Roperty Taxes 
42% 

Public safety expenses comprised approximately 14.5% of expenses of the governmental activities. 
Operations of the labor-intensive Police and Fire Departments are included in this category, along 
with expenses of Emergency Medical Services, and Communications (E911 Call Center). 
Education expenses comprised 45.5% of governmental activities. Funding, established by the 
revenue sharing agreement, of $17.8 million was provided to the City of Colonial Heights School 
Board to support School operations. This reflects a reduction of $294,000 from the budgeted 
estimated $18.1 million due to lower revenues collected by revenue sharing agreement formula 
revenues. 

Public Works and Health and Welfare expenses comprised approximately 7.1 % and 1.4% 
respectfully, of governmental activities expenses. Expenses for Building Maintenance, Street 
Paving, and Street Maintenance are included in Public Works category. Solid Waste management 
previously included in this grouping is now treated as an enterprise fund. The City experienced 
turnover in key personal positions, which resulted in salary lapselbenefit savings and slowdown of 
some construction projects which resulted in a higher unexpended balance than traditionally 
projected. The Comprehensive Services Act and social services programs incurred the majority of 
expenses reported in the Health and Welfare category and reflect a minor decrease over last year. 



Expenses of the governmental activities are shown by functional area: 

udicial Administration 

1 % Cultural 
5% 

The net assets of business-type activities decreased approximately $1 84,000 during 2008. 

The current rate structure was not maintaining sufficient revenues for water and sewer; therefore, 
the current rate structure was increased by 10% and 15% for the Water and Sewer Funds, 
respectfully, for fiscal year 2009. No major changes in operations were experienced. The City 
established and funded a new Stormwater Management Fund also for fiscal year 2009 to deal with 
operational and capital expenses for State and Federal mandates. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the governmental funds reflect a total fund balance of 
$15,647,765. Approximately $15.6 million of this amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, 
which is available for spending services and capital projects. Unreserved fund balance is 
designated to purchase capital equipment, pay claims, fund future debt service requirements, pay 
for future years' capital projects expenditures and encumbrances, which indicates that it has already 
been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders outstanding at year-end. 

The City accounts for Solid Waste collection activities as a business-type activity. This included the 
establishment of a multiyear rate structure increase to bring the operations to be self-sufficient and 
not be a City supported service. 



The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the 
General Fund unreserved fund balance was $9,771,758, while the total fund balance was 
$9,826,537. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund 
balance represents approximately20.6% of the total General Fund expenditures and other financing 
uses, while total fund balance represents 20.7% of that same amount. 

The fund balance of the General Fund was increased by $1 7,787 during the current fiscal year. The 
General Fund begins each year with budgeted revenue and expenditure amounts that are equal. 
This includes $1,200,000 transferred to the Capital Projects fund for one time capital projects and 
reserve for future fire apparatus. 

Local taxes generated the majority of General Fund revenue, totaling approximately $33.8 million in 
fiscal 2008. Increased current collections of personal property taxes helped offset an additional 
non-budgeted 5 cent reduction in the Real Estate tax rate. 

Intergovernmental revenue is the second largest source of General Fund revenues, generating 
approximately $6.5 million in fiscal year 2008. The majority of this revenue is received from the 
Commonwealth and includes law enforcement funding received under Virginia House Bill 599, and 
street maintenance funds. This is a $59,000 decrease from fiscal year 2007. Most of the decrease 
came from previous year's one-time increase in State portion of Personal Property Taxes. Normal 
increases to base street maintenance funds and the funding for Constitutional Offices were 
received. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND HIGHLIGHTS 

The Capital Projects Fund reflects transfer of $1,050,000 in excess unrestricted General Fund 
Balance for one-time capital project additions and continuing annual transfer of $1 50,000 for future 
replacement of fire apparatus. Prior authorized $1 0,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds were sold 
for the expansion/renovation of an elementary school and road projects. Project expenditures 
totaled $5,715,162 which resulted in a net change in fund balances of $5,542,238 for an ending 
fund balance of $5,821,228. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

General Fund revenues exceeded the original budgeted revenues by $761,750 and final budgeted 
revenues by $431,096 or .9 %. This was due to strong increases in real estate assessments offset 
by an additional reduction in the Real Estate tax rate, reduction in local sales tax collections, and 
increases in food tax revenues. EMS transport fees were near projections, after prior year changes 
in percentages of customerwith third party insurances. Changes in budget estimates and collection 
procedures were modified to account for these changes. 

General Fund expenditures and transfers were greater than the original budget by $743,963, and 
were under the final, amended budget by $1,391,121 or 2.9%. During fiscal year 2008, City Council 
amended the budget several times for increases to fund one-time capital projects from General 
Fund Balance reserves, the awarding of donations and receipt of operational grants. Higher than 
normal employee turnover resulted in unexpended personal and fringe benefits savings. Budgetary 
numbers also include equipment purchases authorized but not completed until the 2009 fiscal year. 



CAPITAL ASSETS 

As of June 30, 2008, the City's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities 
amounted to $53,627,914 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment includes land, 
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and structures, equipment and infrastructure. 
The total net decrease (additions less retirements and depreciation) in the City's investment in 
capital assets for the current fiscal year was $1,462,569 or 2.7%. 

Summary Statement of 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

June 30,2008 and 2007 
(In Millions) 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 

Land $4.6 $4.6 $0.1 $0.1 $4.7 $4.7 
Construction in Process .7 2.3 .7 2.3 

Building and Structures 14.1 14.7 2.0 2.1 16.1 16.8 
Infrastructure 18.1 17.0 8.6 8.9 26.7 25.9 
Equipment 4.6 4.6 0.8 0.8 5.4 5.4 

Total $42.1 $43.2 $1 1.5 $1 1.9 $53.6 $55.1 

The changes in each category of Capital Assets are presented in detail in note 9 to the Basic 
Financial Statements. 

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following: 

Expansion/renovation of an elementary school. 

Storm drainage and road improvements southern end of City. 

Recreational facilities design projects. 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

At June 30, 2008, the City's long-term liabilities, not including compensated absences, totaled 
$31,516,590 consisting of $29,138,657 related to governmental activities, and $2,377,933 related to 
business-type activities. This amount increased by $8,007,250 during the fiscal year, as a result of 
the sale of $9,930,000 in General Obligation Bonds less normal debt retirement. 

The City maintained ratings of AA-, AA- and A1 from Fitch Investors Service Inc., Standard & Poor's 
Rating Service and Moody's Investor Service, respectfully. 

The Charter of the City, and Code of Virginia limits the City's net debt to 10% of the assessed 
valuation of real estate. The City's entity-wide debt of $27,295,000 is below the legal debt limit of 
$1 68,097,949. 



The School Board Component Unit relies upon the City to provide full faith and credit for any debt 
obligations incurred. Therefore, the City reports School Board Component Unit long-term liabilities, 
other than compensated absences, as its own. In addition to bonded debt, the City's long-term 
obligations include compensated absences. Additional information concerning the City's long-term 
liabilities is presented in note 10 to the Basic Financial Statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES 

The unemployment rate for the City at June 30,2008 was 4.8 percent, compared toa June 30,2007 
rate of 3.3 percent. This is the same as the state average of 4.8 percent and compares favorably 
with the national average unerrlployment rate of 5.7 percent. 

The City had a population of 16,901, according to the 2000 census, an increase of 837 since the 
1990 census. Current estimation of the City's population by the Virginia Employment Commission is 
17,796. 

Primary revenue sources for the City's General Fund are property taxes, sales taxes, business and 
occupational licenses, meal taxes, and state revenues. In establishing the budget, historical and 
trend data are analyzed. In addition economic indicators and the impact the economy will have on 
the historical data is taken into consideration. -Throughout the year, management monitors revenues 
and economic indicators to determine if they are on target with the analysis used to develop the 
budget. A monthly analysis is prepared for City Council that presents current financial position and a 
year to date comparison to the prior year's position. 

To ensure that the City maintains a competitive corrlpensation package to retain high-performing 
employees, a 3% across-the-board salary and a 3% merit increase for all employees was adopted 
as part of fiscal 2009 budget. Additional contributions to cover cost of employee health and dental 
insurance were also adopted. The adopted fiscal 2009 General Fund budget increased $1,848,316 
over 2008 amounts to maintain current service in the community. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued GASB 43, Financial Reporting for Post- 
Employment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans and GASB 45 Accounting and Financial 
Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions. These two statements 
require local governments to report the liability associated with OPEB. The statement does not 
require that the local government fund the OPEB obligation. The City will have to record this liability 
beginning with the Fiscal Year 2009 CAFR. The City is working with an actuary firm and based on 
the current plan structures of both City and School plans, anticipate a total preliminary actuarial 
accrued liability of $10,947,217 and an annual required contribution of $958,112. This represents 
$2,366,771 for the City and $8,580,446 for the Schools in regard to the total actuarial accrued 
liability and $242,576 to the City and $71 5,536 to the Schools for the annual required contribution. If 
the City funded this liability with an $187,723 annual required contribution in the first yearfor the City 
and a $586,783 annual required contribution in the first year for the Schools, the actuarial accrued 
liability would be reduced to $1,674,280 for the City and $6,240,595 for the Schools. The City is 
currently exploring various options including funding, eligibility, plan design, and cost sharing in an 
effort to mitigate these initial estimated liabilityfigures. 



CONTACTING 'THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability 
for the resources it receives and their uses. Questions concerning this report or requests for 
additional information should be directed to the Director of Finance, P.O. Box 3401, Colonial 
Heights, Virginia 23834, telephone (804) 520-9332. The City's website address is www.colonial- 
heights.com. 





BASIC FlNA NClA L STA TEMENTS 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
June 30,2008 

Exhibit A 

Primarv Government 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Receivables, net 

Taxes 
Accounts 
Other 

Due from primary government 
Due from other governments 
Internal balances 
Inventories 
Other 
Restricted cash 
Financing costs, net of accumulated amortization 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation: 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Land improvements 
Building and structures 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Due to component unit 
Deposits payable 
Due to other governments 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Governmental Business-type Component Unit 
Activities Activities Totals School Board 

Total net assets 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA Exhibit B 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Primary Government 
Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Component Unit 

Functions/Programs Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Totals School Board 
Primarv Government: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Judicial administration 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Parks, recreation and cultural 
Community development 
Education 
Interest 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water 
Sewer 
Solid waste 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

Component Unit: 
Colonial Heights public schools 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

General property taxes 
Other local taxes: 

Local sales and use 
Food and lodging 
Consumer utility and communications sales and use 
Other 

Payments from City of Colonial Heights 
Intergovernmental, non-categorical aid 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in  net assets 
Net assets, beginning 

Net assets, ending 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA Exhibit C 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS 
June 30,2008 

Total 
Governmental 

General Capital Projects Funds 
ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Receivables, net 

Taxes 
Accounts 
Other 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governments 
Due from component unit 
Inventories 
Other 
Restricted cash 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governments 
Due to component unit 
Accrued liabilities 
Deposits payable 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Reserved for: 
Inventories 

Unreserved: 
Designated for: 

Encumbrances 
Future expenditures 

Undesignated: 
General fund 
Capital projects fund 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA Exhibit C 
Page 2 

RECONCII-IATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEIVIENT OF NET ASSETS 
June 30,2008 

Total fund balances - governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities 
in the Statement of Net Assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities 
are not current financial resources and, therefore, 
not reported in the governmental funds. 

Governmental capital assets 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets 

Deferred revenue represents amounts that 
were not available to fund current expenditures 
and, therefore, is not reported as revenue in the 
governmental funds. 

Long-term debt issuance costs are deferred and 
amortized in the Statement of Activities but the 
effect of issuance costs are recorded in the 
governmental funds in the current period. 

Long-term liabilities, including interest payable, 
are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the 
governmental funds. 

Bonds payable, including unamortized premiums 
Notes payable 
Compensated absences 
l nterest payable 

Net assets of governmental activities 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA Exhibit D 
Page 1 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Total 
Governmental 

General Capital Projects Funds 
Revenues: 

General property taxes $ 19,766,717 $ - $ 19,766,717 
Other local taxes 14,080,755 14,080,755 
Permits, fees and licenses 3,446,688 3,446,688 
Fines and forfeitures 566,042 566,042 
Charges for services 1,274,510 1,274,510 
Use of money and property 71 3,779 713,779 
Miscellaneous 362,336 2,500 364,836 
Reimbursement from component unit 677,514 677,514 
Intergovernmental 6,517,955 54,900 6,572,855 

Total revenues 47,406,296 57,400 47,463,696 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Judicial administration 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Parks, recreation and cultural 
Community development 
Education 
Grants 
Nondepartmental 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Capital outlays 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Issuance of debt 
Premium on issuance of debt 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Other financing sources (uses), net 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, beginning 

Fund balances, ending 

See  Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA Exhibit D 
Page 2 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Year Ended June 30,2008 

Governmental 
Funds 

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 5,560,025 

Reconciliation of amounts reported for governmental activities 
in the Statement of Activities: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 
which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the current 
period. 

Expenditures for capital assets 
Less depreciation expense 

Excess of depreciation over capital outlays 

The net effect of miscellaneous transactions involving capital 
assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins, and donations). 

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide 
current financial resources are not reported as revenues 
in the governmental funds. 

Change in deferred revenue 

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to 
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term 
liabilities in the Statement of lVet Assets. Repayment 
of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in 
the Statement of Net Assets. 

Debt issued or incurred: 
General obligation debt 
Premium on general obligation debt 

Principal repayments 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities 
do not require the use of current financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Change in compensated absences 
Change in accrued interest payable 
Capitalized financing costs 
Amortization of financing costs and premiums 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibit E 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June 30,2008 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Major Funds Nonmajor Fund 

Solid 
Water Sewer Waste Totals 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and investments $ 13,246 $ 214,129 $ 72,171 $ 299,546 
Receivables, net 270,839 447,746 193,089 91 1,674 
Due from other funds 324,359 76,688 401,047 
Due from other governments 45,563 45,563 

Total current assets 608,444 784,126 265,260 1,657,830 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 4.881.798 8.051.254 265.260 13.198.312 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Deposits payable 
Compensated absences 
Debt obligations, current 

Total current liabilities 440,898 857,473 1 1,983 1,310,354 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Compensated absences 15,200 10,099 3,555 28,854 
Debt obligations 1,019,001 1,035,839 2,054,840 

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,034,201 1,045,938 3,555 2,083,694 

Total liabilities 1,475,099 1,903,411 15,538 3,394,048 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,112,818 6,049,731 9,162,549 
Unrestricted 293,881 98,'l12 249,722 641,715 

Total net assets 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibit F 

STATEIVIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Major Funds Nonmajor Fund 

Solid 
Water Sewer Waste Totals 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Connection fees 
Penalties and interest 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Personnel 
Fringe benefits 
Heat, light and power 
Repairs and maintenance 
General materials and supplies 
Contracted collection services 
Sewage treatment costs 
Water purchased for resale 
Depreciation 
Other charges 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 
Sale of scrap 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating expenses, net 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning 

Net assets, ending 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Exhibit G 
Page I 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Major Funds Nonmajor Fund 

Solid 
Water Sewer Waste Totals 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Receipts from customers $ 1,680,411 $ 2,425,723 $ 1,079,557 $ 5,185,691 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (886,857) (2,147,582) (1,206,482) (4,240,921 ) 
Payments to employees for services (541,916) (342,066) (66,183) (950,165) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 251,638 (63,925) (1 93,108) (5,395) 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Transfers in 202,000 202,000 
Advances (to) from other funds (82,616) 461,603 (29,266) 349,72 1 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital 
financing activities (82,6 1 6) 461,603 172,734 551,721 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (14,000) (16,878) (30,878) 
Principal paid on bond maturities and capital lease (1 34,941 ) (1 71,673) (306,6 14) 
Interest paid on bond maturities and capital lease (49,447) (50,811) (1 00,258) 

Net cash used in capital and related 
financing activities (1 98,388) (239,362) (437,750) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
Interest income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 11,217 11,217 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Beginning 

Ending 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Exhibit G 
Page 2 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Major Funds Nonmajor Fund 

Sol id 
Water Sewer Waste Totals 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ 94,601 $ (197,958) $ (201,943) $ (305,300) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation 128,041 224,712 352,753 
Cash received from sales of scrap 7,651 7,651 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (43,969) (40,338) 1 7,706 (66,601 ) 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts payable 91,894 54,293 (1 1,330) 134,857 
Accrued liabilities (26,580) (1 04,634) 2,459 (1 28,755) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Capital and Related 
financing activity: 

Assets transferred from Water to Sewer fund 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note I. Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia, (City) conform with accounting 
principals generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units 
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant of 
the City's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reportinq Entity 

The City of Colonial Heights, Virginia was incorporated in 1948 and its current charter was granted 
in 1960. The City is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia operating under a 
CouncilIManager form of government. City Council consists of a mayor and six council members. 
The City is not part of a county and has taxing powers subject to statewide restrictions and tax limits. 

The City provides the full range of municipal services including police and fire, sanitation, health and 
social services, education, parks and recreation and water, sewer, and trash services. The City 
provides education through its own school system administered by the Colonial Heights School 
Board. The City also owns and operates its own water and sewer system, adrr~inistered by the 
Colonial Heights Department of Public Utilities. 

Discretelv Presented Component Unit - School Board - The City of Colonial Heights public school 
system is responsible for elementary and secondary education within the City. The elected five- 
member School Board serves staggered four-year terms of office. The School Board functions 
independently of the City Council, but is required to prepare and submit an annual budget to the City 
Council for approval. The School Board may not levy taxes or incur indebtedness under Virginia law 
and, therefore, funds for school operations are provided, in part, by appropriation from the City's 
General Fund. Funds for constructing school facilities are provided by City approved and issued 
general obligation bonds and appropriations from the City's General Fund. The School Board is 
presented as a governmental fund type and consists of one operating fund and one capital projects 
fund. Additionally, the School Board reports one agency fund, the School Activity Fund, which is 
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of operations. 

The APA establishes financial reporting requirements for all localities in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia. The APA has determined that all Virginia School Boards shall be reported as discretely 
presented component units of the locality. The APA has also specified additional reporting 
requirements with respect to School Boards. 

The Component Unit's financial reports, herein presented, were prepared by the City's Financial 
Administration Office using information provided by the School Board which has been audited by 
their independent auditors. School Board related capital assets and long-term liabilities are included 
under the discrete component unit presentation. Details specific to School Board information 
communicated in the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report may be obtained by contacting 
the School Board's administrative offices located at: 

City of Colonial Heights School Board 
51 2 Boulevard 
Colonial Heights, Virginia 23834 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-Wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 
display information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These 
statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary 
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal 
activities. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of 
consolidation. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type 
activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities 
are .financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from the legally separate component unit for which the 
primary government is financially accountable. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the 
City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated 
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. 
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the 
Statement of Activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. 
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the 
City's funds. Separate statements for each fund category- governmental and proprietaty- 
are presented. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accountinq and Financial Statement Plesentation 

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are 
reported using the accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related 
cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) 
value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, 
grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from the property taxes is 
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, 
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note I. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accountins and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. 
The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the 
revenues are collected within 75 days after year-end, except property taxes which are 
recognized as revenue if they have been collected within 45 days after year-end. Property 
taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and 
interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and cornpensated absences, 
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital 
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general 
long-term debt, acquisitions under capital leases and sales of capital assets are reported as 
other financing sources. 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of 
specific cost-reimbursement grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses 
are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the 
program. It is the City's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such 
programs, and then general revenues to fund the program. 

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise funds of the City follow 
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research 
Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are 
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating 
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange 
transactions or ancillary activities. 

Operating expenses include cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on 
capital assets. All expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
expenses. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund. This is the basic operating fund of the City and all regular activities 
not expressly allocable to another fund are accounted for in this fund. 

Capital Projects Fund. This is used to account for financial resources, which have 
been segregated for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other 
than those financed or constructed by the proprietary funds). 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Enterprise Funds. The Water Fund and Sewer Fund are used to account for the 
acquisition, operation and maintenance of facilities which are primarily supported by 
user charges. The City elected to establish a Solid Waste Fund to provide solid 
waste collections and become self-sufficient over a multi-year rate structure 
increase. The operations of the Water, Sewer, and Solid Waste Funds are 
accounted for and reported as Enterprise Funds. These funds account for services 
to the general public which are financed primarily by charges to users of such 
services. 

D. Budqetaw Data 

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the Comparative Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and 
Actual (Schedule H): 

1. Proposal - At least 60 days prior to June 30, the City Manager submits to City 
Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following 
July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of 
financing them. 

2. Projects - The capital projects budget is prepared on a project length basis under 
which the total outlayfor each project is estimated for the length of the project. 

3. Adoption - Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments on the 
proposed budget. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally adopted at the departmental 
level through passage of an appropriation ordinance by City Council. 

4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer amounts within departments, with any 
interdepartmental transfers being approved by City Council. During the year, 
$2,135,089 in supplemental appropriations were approved by City Council. These 
amendments consisted primarily of appropriations of prior year encumbrances, the 
appropriation of designated fund balance, and the appropriation of additional 
intergovernmental grants received during the year. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D. Budqetary Data (Continued) 

5. Legal Compliance - Actual expenditures and operating transfers out may not legally 
exceed budget appropriations for each department. City Council legally adopts an annual 
budget for the General Fund. Its budget is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America except for the recognition of 
encumbrances, the classification of certain transfers as expenditures, and the 
consideration of beginning fund balance as a budgetary resource. 

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

1. Investments 

The City considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, certificates of deposit, money 
market funds and the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool. Cash resources of 
the individual funds are combined to form a pool of cash and investments to maximize earnings. 
All investment earnings are allocated to the various funds based on equity in the investment pool. 

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. 

2. Property Taxes 

Real Property - The City levies real estate taxes on all real estate within its boundaries except 
those specifically exempted by statute. These levies are assessed on a calendar year basis as of 
January 1 on the estimated fair market value of property. The City follows the practice of 
reassessing real property biennially. 

For real estate assessed on January 1,2008, payment is due in two installments on May 15 and 
November 15 and is considered delinquent if not received by the due date. On January 1, real 
estate taxes become an enforceable lien on related property. The real estate taxes reported as 
current year revenue are the second installment (November 15) of the levy on assessed vahe at 
January 1,2007 and the first installment (May 15) of the levy at January 1,2008. The tax rate for 
calendar year 2008 was $1.15 per $1 00 of assessed value. 

Personal Property - The City levies personal property taxes on motor vehicles and personal and 
business property. These levies are assessed on a calendar year basis as of January 1. Personal 
property taxes are payable in two installments, which are due on June 5 and December 5. Taxes 
become delinquent if not received by the due date. On January 1, personal property taxes 
become an enforceable lien on related property. The personal property taxes reported as revenue 
are the second installment (December 5) of the levy on assessed value at January 1,2007, and 
the first installment (June 5) of the levy at January 1, 2008. The tax rate for calendar year 2008 
was $3.50 per $1 00 of assessed value. Under the provisions of the Personal Property Tax Relief 
Act of 1998 (PPTRA), the City received $1,753,369 for the State's share of the local personal 
property tax payment with the remainder collected by the City. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note I. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

3. Inventories 

lnventories are valued at cost and are determined by using the first-in, first-out method. 
lnventories are accounted for under the consumption method, where inventories are 
recorded as expenditures when consumed, rather than when purchased. 

4. Restricted Cash 

The General Capital Projects and School Board Capital Projects funds have restricted their 
cash balances in accordance with a debt agreement. 

5. Capital Assets 

Capital assets with a value of $5,000 or greater are recorded in the applicable government 
or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital 
assets belonging to proprietary funds are also reported in the applicable fund financial 
statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at historical or estimated historical cost 
if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at theirestimated 
fair market value on the date donated. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated 
useful lives using the straight-line method. No depreciation expense is recorded for land, or 
construction-in-progress. The estimated useful lives are: 

Land improvement 
Buildings and structures 
Equipment 
Infrastructure 

5 - 20 years 
20 - 50 years 
4 - 20 years 

30 - 50 years 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City's infrastructure has been capitalized, 
including infrastructure acquired prior to 1980. 

6. Compensated Absences Payable 

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused compensated 
absences. For government-wide reporting, a liability is recorded for compensated absences 
when services are rendered and employees have earned the right to received compensation 
for such services. 

Liabilities for compensated absences are not liquidated until leave is actually taken by 
employees or leave balances are paid upon termination. Accordingly, in the fund financial 
statements for governmental funds, no expenditure is reported for compensated absences 
until they are paid. Current and non-current portions of compensated absences totaling 
$1,020,691 are recorded for governmental activities in the government-wide statements and 
represent a reconciling item between the government-wide and fund presentations. 

Compensated absences earned by employees and charged to proprietary funds are 
expensed and accrued as a liability of the appropriate fund when incurred. At June 30,2008, 
the liabilityfor compensated absences was $55,641. 

37 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note I. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

E. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

7. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activity or proprietary fund type statement 
of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as 
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

8. Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for 
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for 
use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management 
plans that are subject to change. 

9. Net Assets 

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets inmsted in 
capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt excludes unspent debt proceeds. Net assets are reported as 
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling 
legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 

F. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditureslexpenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 2. Deposits and Investments 

Deposits: All cash of the City is maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the 
Virginia Securityfor Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered 
by federal depository insurance. 

Investments: Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations 
of the United States or its agencies thereof, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political 
subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development 
(World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, "prime quality" 
commercial paper and certain corporate notes, bankers' acceptances, repurchase agreements and 
the State Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). 

The City has investments in the LGIP. The LGlP is a professionally managed money market fund 
which invests in qualifying obligations and securities as permitted by Virginia statutes. Pursuant to 
Section 2.2-4605 Code of Virginia, the Treasury Board of the Commonwealth sponsors the LGlP 
and has delegated certain functions to the State Treasurer. The LGlP reports to the Treasury Board 
at their regularly scheduled monthly meetings. The fair value of the LGlP is the same as the value 
of the pool shares, i.e., the LGlP maintains a stable net asset value of $1 per share. The LGlP has 
been assigned an "AAAm" rating by Standard & Poor's. All of the investments made by the City are 
in LGIP. The maturity of the LGlP is less than one Far .  

The City's investment policy only allows investments in types approved by state statutes. The City 
will not invest in any derivatives or securities with maturities over one year. 

At June 30, 2008, the Citds deposit and investment balances were as follows: 

Fair 
Value 

Deposits: 
Demand 
Cash on hand 

Investments: 
Money market funds 
Treasurer's local government investment pool 

Total deposits and investments 

At June 30, 2008, the School Board's deposit and investment balances were as follows: 

Deposits: 
Demand 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 3. Receivables 

Receivables at June 30, 2008, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as 
follows: 

Solid 
General Water Sewer Waste 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals 

Taxes 
Accounts 
Other 

Gross receivables 11,983,649 297,839 495,746 193,089 12,970,323 

Less allowance for uncollectible 
accounts 239.690 27.000 48.000 314.690 

Net receivables $ 11,743,959 $ 270,839 $ 447,746 $ 193,089 $ 12,655,633 

The allowance for uncollectibles in the General and Enterprise Funds is based on prior experience 
with respect to collections. In accordance with policy, no allowance is recorded for delinquent real 
estate taxes. 

Note 4. Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for 
which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, such amounts are measurable, but not available. Deferred revenue totaling 
$1 1,351,345 comprised of the following: 

Deferred Property Tax Revenue - Deferred revenue, representing uncollected tax billings 
not available for funding of current expenditures, totaled $1 0,770,036 at June 30,2008. 
Unearned advance 2008 tax billing represent $10,268,254 with $501,782 being other 
unavailable receivables. 

Prepaid Property Taxes - Property taxes due sl~bsequent to June 30, 2008 but paid in 
advance by the taxpayers totaled $581,309 at June 30, 2008. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 5. Post Retirement Health Care Benefits 

In accordance with a City ordinance, retirees with 20 years of service are provided a Medicare 
premium supplement totaling $1.50 per year of service, with a maximum supplement of $45 per 
month. Expenditures are recognized on a pay-as-you-go basis. The retiree must pay for coverage 
of dependents. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City's share of premiums was 
$2,712 for ten participating retirees. 

In addition, City retirees not eligible for Medicare and who have 20 years of service receive a group 
health insurance credit of $50 per month plus a $5 per month credit for each year of service 
exceeding 20 years. This credit is limited to $100 per month. Expenditures are recognized on a 
pay-as-you-go basis. During the fiscal year ended June 30,2008, the City's share of premiums was 
$8,100 for ten participating retirees. 

Note 6. Due From Other Governments 

Due from other governments consists of the following: 

Primary Component Sewer 
Government Unit Fund 

Federal government 
Commonwealth of Virginia: 

Other aid, grants and reimbursements 
Sales tax 
PPTRA 

Chesterfield County service charges 
Virginia State University service charges 
Other governments 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 7. lnterfund Obligations 

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2008 are: 

Interfund lnterfund 
Receivables Pava bles 

General Fund 
Capital Project Fund 
Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 

Bond financed Water Fund and Sewer Fund projects are transferred to the Capital Project Fund 
which accounts for payables between the funds. The Sewer Fund interfund payable represents past 
operational subsidies received from General Fund. 

Note 8. lnterfund Transfers 

Transfer From Fund 
Total 

General Water Transferred 
Fund Fund In 

Transfer To Fund: 

Capital Projects Fund 
Solid Waste Fund 
Sewer Fund 

Total Transferred Out $ 1,402,000 $ 6,396,360 $ 7,798,360 

The transfer from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund was to transfer bond proceeds for 
capital project expenditures. 

The transfer from the General Fund to the Solid Waste Fund was to subsidize operations 

The transfer from the Water Fund to the Sewer Fund was to establish the Sewer Fund out of the 
former combined Water and Sewer Fund. 
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Note 9. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows: 

Primary Government: 

Beginning (Deletions)/ Ending 
Balance Increases Reclassifications Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets, 
not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and structures 
lnfrastructure 
Equipment 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and structures 
lnfrastructure 
Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation (43,987,891) (2,616,656) 67,967 (46,536,580) 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 36,301,739 (1,727,506) 2,224,311 36,798,544 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 43,228,126 $ (1,098,161) $ (42,533) $ 42,087,432 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Judicial administration 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Parks, recreation and cultural 

Total  depreciat ion expense - governmental  activit ies 
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Note 9. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Equipment and other fixed assets include capitalized leases of $1 , I  82,442 with a net book value 
$1 86,200. 

Management has determined that capitalization of interest costs in the proprietary fund types is 
immaterial in relation to total expenses and total proprietary fund capital assets. Accordingly, the 
City does not currently capitalize interest costs. 

Beginning (Deletions)/ Ending 
Balance Increases Reclassifications Balance 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 136 .300$  - $ - $ 136.300 

Total capital assets, 
not being depreciated 136,300 136,300 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Land improvements 48,927 48,927 
Buildings and structures 3,762,630 3,762,630 
Infrastructure 14,168,489 14,168,489 
Equipment 2,551,211 30,878 (9,881 2,572,208 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 20,531,257 30,878 (9,881 20,552,254 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements (37,972) (249) (38,221 ) 
Buildings and structures (1,675,206) (79,873) (1,755,079) 
Infrastructure (5,310,080) (215,792) (5,525,872) 
Equipment (1,781,942) (56,839) 9,881 (1,828,900) 

Total accumulated depreciation (8,805,200) (352,753) 9,881 (9,148,072) 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 11,726,057 (321,875) 11,404,182 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 11,862,357 $ (321,875) $ - $ 11,540,482 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Business-type activities: 

Water 
Sewer 
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Note 9. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Component Unit: School Board 

Beginning (Deletions)/ Ending 
Balance Additions Reclassifications Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 1,090,102 $ - $ - $ 1,090,102 
Construction in progress 3,666,322 364,980 4,031,302 

Total capital assets, 
not being depreciated 1,090,102 3,666,322 364,980 5,121,404 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings and structures 19,073,345 464,409 (378,733) 19,159,021 
Equipment 3,249,799 164,287 3,414,086 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 22,323,144 628,696 (378,733) 22,573,107 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and structures (1 0,090,829) (41 7,425) 2,750 (1 0,505,504) 
Equipment (2,212,359) (242,204) (2,454,563) 

Total accumulated (1 2,303,188) (659,629) 2,750 (1 2,960,067) 
depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 10,019,956 (30,933) (375,983) 9,613,040 

School Board capital assets, net $ 11,110,058 $ 3,635,389 $ (1 1,003) $ 14,734,444 
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Note 10. Long-Term Obligations 

The following schedule reflects changes in long-term liabilities, by area of responsibility, for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2008: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance l ncreases Decreases Balance One Year 

Governmental activities: 
General obligation bonds $ 16,740,612 $ 9,930,000 $ (1,672,927) $ 24,997,685 $ 2,112,578 
Notes payable 3,970,300 3,970,300 3,970,300 
Unamortized premium 113,881 70,000 (1 3,209) 170,672 

20,824,793 10,000,000 (1,686,136) 29,138,657 6,082,878 
Compensated absences 934,265 964,311 (877,885) 1,020,691 689,084 

21,759,058 10,964,311 (2,564,021) 30,159,348 6,771,962 

Business-type activities: 
General obligation bonds 2,579,388 (282,073) 2,297,315 297,422 
Capital lease 105,159 (24,541) 80,618 25,671 

2,684,547 (306,614) 2,377,933 323,093 
Compensated absences 52,388 86,693 (83,440) 55,641 26,787 

2,736,935 86,693 (390,054) 2,433,574 349,880 
Primary government long-term 
liabilities $ 24,495,993 $ 11,051,004 $ (2,954,075) $ 32,592,922 $ 7,121,842 

Component unit - School Board: 
Compensated absences $ 750,257 $ 232,476 $ (158,479) $ 824,254 $ 41,213 
Retirement incentive program 798,475 (274,248) 524,227 130,292 

$ 1,548,732 $ 232,476 $ (432,727) $ 1,348,481 $ 171,505 

Enterprise Fund revenue sources are used to repay its debt, with all other debt, except School 
Board accrued leave and retirement incentive, being paid out of General Fund sources. 

Outstanding long-term liabilities at June 30, 2008 are comprised of the following: 

Date Interest Amount 

Description Issued Rate Outstanding 

General obligation serial bonds: 
General improvement: 
Series 1996 1996 5.100-5.250% $ 760,000 
Series 1998 1998 3.850-4.1 00% 1,965,000 
Series 2000 2000 5.125-5.400% 3,645,000 
Series 2002 2002 4.000-4.300% 4,675,000 
Series 2003 2003 2.470% 890,000 
Series 2004 2004 3.000-3.750% 5,430,000 
Series 2007 2007 4.000% 9,930,000 

Total bonds $ 27,295,000 
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Note 10. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Date Interest Amount 
Description Issued Rate Outstanding 

Notes Payable: 
Chesterfield Avenue Property 2005 5.02% $ 3,970,300 

Capital Lease Payable 

Retirement Inceptive Program 

All general obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the City. All financial bond 
requirements have been met by the City. 

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term liabilities outstanding, excluding accrued annual 
leave, retirement incentive program and environmental liabilities are as follows: 

General Obligation Bonds 
Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2009 
201 0 
201 1 
2012 
201 3 
2014-2018 
201 9-2023 
2024-2027 

Total 

Notes Payable Capital Lease Payable 
Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2009 
2010 
201 1 

Total 
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Note 11. Environmental Liabilities 

State and Federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on each phase of its 
landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring 
functions at the site for a certain number of years after closure. For purposes of determining the 
required years for postclosure testing, the former landfill is treated as a solid waste landfill .that 
stopped receiving waste prior to the passing of Subtitle D of the Environmental Protection Act 
Regulations. The required number of years of testing is thus ten pars.  

The City has recently completed the process of closing the former City landfill. The North End has 
been previously closed and the South End was approved by the Virginia Division of Waste 
Management during the year ended June 30,2003. The postclosure costs for the South End of the 
former City landfill are currently projected to be approximately $300,000 based on a minimum ten 
years of testing. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in 
regulations. 

The City plans to meet all federal laws, regulations and tests of financial assurance related to the 
financing of closure and postclosure care when they become effective. 

Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Name of Plan: Virginia Retirement System (VRS) 

Identification of Plan: Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Administering Entity: Virginia Retirement System (System) 

Plan Description: The City and School Board contribute to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), an 
agent and cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the VRS. All 
full-time, salaried, permanent err~ployees of participating employers must participate in the VRS. 
Benefits vest after 5 years of service. Employees are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at 
age 65 with 5 years of service (age 60 for local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs), 
or at age 50 with at least 30 years of service if elected by the employer (age 50 with at least 25 
years of service for participating local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs) payable 
monthlyfor life in an amount equal to 1.7 percent of their average final compensation (AFC)for each 
year of credited service (1.85% for sheriffs and, if the employer elects, to other employees in 
hazardous duty positions receiving enhanced benefits). In addition, retirees qualify for ar~nual cost- 
of-living increases limited to 5% per year beginning in their second year of retirement. AFC is 
defined as the highest consecutive 36 months of reported compensation. Benefits are actuarially 
reduced for retirees who retire prior to becoming eligible for full retirement benefits. Participating 
local law enforcement officers, firefighters, and sheriffs may receive a monthly benefit supplement if 
they retire prior to age 65. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51 .I of the 
Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia. 

The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for VRS. A copy of that report may be obtained 
by writing the System at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500 or downloaded from their 
website at http:llw.varetire.orglpdflpublicationsl2OO7annurept.pdf. 
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Fundinq Policv: Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 
amended, to contribute 5% of their annual reported salary to VRS. This 5% member contribution 
may be assumed by the employer. The City and School Board have elected to assume the 5% 
member contribution. In addition, they are required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary 
to fund their participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the Code of  Virginia and 
approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The City's and School Board's (for nonprofessional 
employees) contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was 14.8% and 12.44% of 
annual covered payroll, respectively. The School Board required contributions and percentage to the 
VRS statewide teacher (professional employees) pool for fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 2006 was 
$2,238,955, $2,582,690, and $1,683,839, respectively and were equal to 100% of the required 
contribution for professional employees for each year. 

Annual Pension Cost: For fiscal year 2008, the City's and School Board's nonprofessional employee 
annual pension costs of $1,787,697 were equal to the required and actual contributions. The 
required contributions were determined as part of the June 30, 2005 actuarial valuation using the 
entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.5% investment 
rate of return, (b) projected salary increases ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year, and (c) 2.5% 
per year cost-of-living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 2.5%. The 
actuarial value of the assets is equal to the modified market value of assets. This method uses 
techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of assets over a five- 
year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of 
payroll on an open basis within a period of 21 years. 

Three-year trend information for the City and School Board nonprofessional employees is as 
follows: 

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage of APC Net Pension 
Ended Pension Cost Contributed Obligation 

City: 

June 30,2008 $ 1,664,177 

June 30,2007 1,468,499 

June 30,2006 1,416,366 

School Board: 

June 30,2008 $ 123,520 

June 30,2007 125,556 

June 30,2006 80,840 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 12. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Funded Status and Fundinq Progress: As of June 30, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation 
date, the City's Plan was 88.05% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 
$40,669,059, and the actuarial value of assets was $35,809,408, resulting in an unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability (UAAL) of $4,859,651. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the Plan) was $9,955,727, and ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 48.81%. 

As of June 30,2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the School Board's Plan was 93.36% 
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $3,760,191, and the actuarial value of assets 
was $3,510,664, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $249,527. The 
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was $1,016,232 and ratio 
of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 24.55%. 

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the 
notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial 
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilityfor 
benefits. 

Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

Continqent Liabilities: Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of 
the City management, resolution of these cases would not involve a substantial liability for the City. 

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. Although the City has been 
audited in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, these programs are still subject to 
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could lead to 
requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of grants. 
Based on prior experience, City management believes such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial. 

Utilitv Commitments: The utility department has entered into various contracts for the purchase of 
water and the treatment of sewage. These commitments are considered by the water and sewer 
department in establishing water and sewer rates. 

Construction Commitments: The City has entered into various construction contracts totaling 
approximately $61 2,000. The School Board has outstanding construction contract commitments of 
approximately $1,839,000. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 14. Risk Management 

The City and its component unit are exposed to various losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and others; and natural 
disasters. The City is covered by propertylcasualty insurance policies or participation in public entity 
risk pools on real and personal property, workers' compensation, public entity and officers' excess 
liability, and volunteer liability. There were no material reductions in insurance coverage from 
coverage in the prior year nor did settlements exceed coverage for any of the past three fiscal years. 

Risk Pools 

The City participates in the Commonwealth of Virginia's Law Enforcement Liability Plan, called VA 
Risk2, operated by the Division of Risk Management of the Commonwealth's Department of General 
Services. It was created in accordance with Sec. 2.1-526.8:l of the Code of Virginia, which says that 
the State shall have the right and duty to defend any suit seeking damages or compensation against 
the City's officials and employees on account of wrongful acts even if any of the allegations of the 
suits are groundless, false, or fraudulent and may make investigation and settlement of any claims 
or suit as deemed expedient. The limits of VA Risk2 coverage are $1,000,000 per claim. 

Under the provisions of the Virginia Workers' Corr~pensation Act, the City has secured the payment 
of compensation benefits and employers' liability coverage with the Virginia Municipal Group Self 
Insurance Association (VMGSIA). VMGSIA is a public entity risk pool providing a comprehensive 
workers' compensation insurance program and risk management services with emphasis on loss 
control and claims administration. 

The City has secured real and personal property coverage and general liability insurance, including 
automobiles, with the Virginia Municipal Liability Pool. The pool is a public entity risk pool providing 
compensative liability coverage risk management services with emphasis on loss control and claims 
administration. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 15. Jointventures 

Riverside Reqional Jail Authority: The Riverside Regional Jail Authority (Jail Authority) was created by 
Chapter 726 of the 1990 Acts of the General Assembly and was formed on June 21, 1990. The Jail 
Authority is comprised of the Cities of Colonial Heights, Hopewell and Petersburg and the Counties of 
Charles City, Chesterfield, Prince George and Surry. The Jail Authority is governed by a seven-member 
board comprised of one member from each participating jurisdiction. Each member must reside in and 
be appointed by the governing body of his political subdivision. 

The general purpose of the Jail Authority is to acquire, construct, equip, maintain and operate a 
regional jail facility to meet the needs of the participating jurisdictions for additional jail facilities. The Jail 
Authority completed the feasibility study and conceptual design of the jail and proceeded with the 
preparation of the Service Agreement. The Service Agreement is a long-term contract regulating usage 
of the jail and establishing payment terms applicable to participating jurisdictions. It guarantees that the 
facility will be used and provides for the issuance of revenue bonds to fund the final design and 
construction of the regional jail facility. During July and August 1992, each participating jurisdiction 
approved the Service Agreement at its respective board meeting. The board members of the Jail 
Authority signed the Service Agreement on August 27, 1992. 

Complete financial statements for the Jail Authority can be obtained from the Jail Authority at 1000 
River Road, P.O. Box 1041, Hopewell, VA 23860. 

Appomattox River Water Authority: The City, in conjunction with the Counties of Chesterfield, Dinwiddie 
and Prince George and the City of Petersburg, participated in the creation of the Appomattox River 
Water Authority (Water Authority). The Water Authority was established under the provisions of the 
Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act. The Water Authority, whose five-member board is comprised 
of one representative from each participating entity, is responsible for providing a supply of filtered 
water to be purchased by the members of the Water Authority. In accordance with the joint venture 
agreement, each participating entity is required to purchase water from the Water Authority. The City 
retains an ongoing financial responsibilityfor the joint venture due to this requirement of the agreement. 
The City's purchase of water for the year ended June 30, 2008 was $522,824. Complete financial 
statementsfor the Water Authority can be obtained from the Water Authority's office at 21 300 Chesdin 
Road, Petersburg, VA 23803. 

South Central Wastewater Authoritv (SCWWA): The authority was created on July 2, 1996, and 
currently provides wastewater treatment to the Cities of Colonial Heights and Petersburg, the Counties 
of Chesterfield and Prince George and the Dinwiddie County Water Authority. The City has 4.0 million 
gallons per day of wastewater treatment capacity reserved at SCWWA's plant pursuant to a long-term 
service contract. The City's cost of wastewater treatment for the year ended June 30, 2008 was 
$1,709,231. Complete financial statements for the Wastewater Authority can be obtained from the 
Wastewater Authority's office at 900 Magazine Road, Petersburg, VA 23803. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 16. Jointly Governed Organizations 

Central Virqinia Waste Manaqement Authority The Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 
(Waste Authority) was established under the provision of the Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act. 
The Waste Authority's board is comprised of representatives from the' Cities of Colonial Heights, 
Petersburg and Richmond, as well as the Counties of Charles City, Chesterfield, Goochland, Hanover, 
Henrico, New Kent, Powhatan, Prince George, and the Town of Ashland. The Waste Authority is 
comprised of a 20-member board with memberjurisdictions making at least one but no more than three 
appointments. The City appoints one board member. The Waste Authority is responsible for creating 
and implementing recycling and solid waste management programs for member jurisdictions in order to 
meet waste reduction mandates set by the Virginia General Assembly. Except for contribution 
requirements and direct payments for special projects, no participant has an ongoing financial interest 
or responsibility in the Waste Authority. The City's fiscal year 2008 contribution requirement and direct 
payments for special projects totaled $1,028,956. 

Virqinia Gateway Reqion Board: The Virginia Gateway Region Board (VGRB) serves the Cities of 
Colonial Heights, Hopewell and Petersburg, as well as the Counties of Chesterfield, Dinwiddie and 
Prince George in their efforts to provide balanced industrialization to corporation members. The City 
appoints two members of the ABIDCO board and contributed $32,623 to ABIDCO for the fiscal year 
ended June 30,2008. 

Note 17. Related Organization 

The City Council is responsible for appointing the members of the Colonial Heights Industrial 
Development Authority (Development Authority), but the City Council's accountability for this 
organization does not extend beyond making the appointments. The Development Authority was 
established under the Industrial Development and Revenue Act, Code of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia. The Development Authority has the responsibility to promote industry and development of 
trade by inducing manufacturing, industrial and commercial enterprise to locate or to remain in the City. 

Note 18. Subsequent Event 

On October 22, 2008, the City issued $3,970,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds for the 
purpose of refinancing the note payable. The bonds are payable over five years with an interest rate of 
3.25%. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 19. Pending GASB Statements 

At June 30,2008, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) had issued statements not 
yet implemented by the City. The statements which might impact the City are as follows: 

GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Repotting by Employers for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions, establishes standards for the measurement, recogr~ition, and display of 
OPE6 expenselexpenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and required 
supplemental information. Statement No. 45 will be effective for periods beginning after December 15, 
2007. 

GAS6 Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Repotting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, 
identifies circumstances requiring a liability to be reported for pollution remediation. Statement No. 49 
will be effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2007. 

GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Repotting for Intangible Assets, establishes 
accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets, particularly in the areas of 
recognition, initial measurement, and amortization to reduce inconsistencies of reporting among state 
and local governments. Statement No. 51 will be effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. 

GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Repotting for Derivative Instruments, addresses the 
recognition, measure, and disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by 
state and local governments. Statement No. 53 will be effective for periods beginning after June 15, 
2009. 
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA AND COMPONENT UNIT 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Unfunded 
Actuarial 

Unfunded Accrued 
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Liability as a 
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of 

Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll 

A. Primary Government employees: 

June 30, 2005 $ 29,337,817 $ 35,696,899 $ 6,359,082 82.19% $ 9,297,992 68.39% 

June 30,2006 31,475,180 34,821,242 3,346,062 90.39% 9,432,548 35.47% 

June 30,2007 35,809,408 40,669,059 4,859,651 88.05% 9,955,727 48.81 % 

B. Component Unit - School Board non-professional employees: 

June 30, 2005 $ 3,093,205 $ 3,597,080 $ 503,875 85.99% $ 914,889 

June 30, 2006 3,167,031 3,473,258 306,227 91.18% 912,761 

June 30,2007 3,510,664 3,760,191 249,527 93.36% 1,016,232 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITLIRES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Revenues: 
Revenue from local sources: 

General property taxes: 
Real property 
Real and personal public service corporation 
property 
Personal property 
Delinquent 
Penalties and interest 

Total general property taxes 

Other local taxes: 
Communication sales and use 
Food and lodging 
Consumer utility 
Bank stock 
Local option sales and use 
Recordation 
Franchise utility 

Total local taxes 

Permits, fees and licenses: 
Business and occupational licenses 
Motor vehicle licenses 
Zoning and construction permits 
Other fees 

Total permits, fees and licenses 

Fines and forfeitures 

Charges for services: 
Recreation use charges and fees 
Administrative 
Other 
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Total charges for services 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Revenues: 
Revenue from local sources: 

Use of money and property: 
Interest 
Rental of property 
Sale of commodities and property 

Total use o f  money and property 

Miscellaneous 

Reimbursement from component unit 

Total revenue from local sources 

Intergovernmental: 
Revenue from the Commonwealth: 

Non-categorical aid: 
Personal property tax relief 
ABC profits and wine taxes 
Rolling stock taxes 

Total non-categorical aid 

Categorical aid: 
Commissioner of Revenue 
Treasurer 
Circuit court 
Sheriff 
Commonwealth's attorney 
Law enforcement 
Street construction and maintenance 

Exhibit H 
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Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget 

Original Final Amounts Over (Under) 

Other 442,595 568,338 582,096 13,758 

Total categorical aid 4,298,324 4,488,553 4,528,222 39,669 

Total revenue from the 
Commonwealth 

Revenue from the federal government: 
Categorical aid 58,574 182,591 21 2,309 29,718 

Total intergovernmental 6,133,657 6,447,903 6,517,955 70,052 

Total revenues 46,644,546 46,975,200 47,406,296 431,096 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Expenditures: 
General government: 

City counsel 
Clerk of counsel 
City manager 
Human resources 
City attorney 
Real estate assessor 
Commissioner of revenue 
Treasurer 
Finance 
Information technologies 
Auditing 
Purchasing 
Insurance and risk management 
Employee benefits 
Board of elections 
Registrar 

Total general government 

Judicial administration: 
Circuit courts 
General district court 
Probation 
Commonwealth's attorney 
Sheriff 
Incarceration 
Community correction services 
Community diversion services 

Total judicial administration 

Public safety: 
Bureau of police 
Bureau of fire 
Emergency preparedness 
Communications 

Total public safety 
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
Year Ended June 30,2008 
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget 

Original Final Amounts Over (Under) 
Expenditures: 

Public works: 
Administration 
Horticulture 
Engineering division 
Street maintenance 
Building maintenance 
Traffic engineering 
Fleet maintenance 

Total public works 3,252,443 3,475,470 2,596,771 (878,699) 

Health and welfare: 
Health 
Welfare 
Comprehensive services 

Total health and welfare 606,070 606,070 712,298 106,228 

Parks, recreation and cultural: 
Parks and recreation 565,686 580,598 548,595 (32,003) 
Parks and grounds 539,301 546,301 496,456 (49,845) 
Agency on aging 206,093 225,760 184,980 (40,780) 
Violet Bank Museum 94,680 97,610 67,779 (29,831) 
Library 564,850 585,709 582,343 (3,366) 
Recreation trips and classes 229,000 229,000 250,823 21,823 

Total parks, recreation and cultural 2,199,610 2,264,978 2,130,976 (1 34,002) 

Community development: 
Planning 
Building inspections 
Industrial development 

Total community development 533,285 567,149 538,041 (29,108) 

Education: 
Appropriation to component unit 18,142,897 18,142,897 18,143,261 364 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Expenditures: 
Grants: 

Office of Youth 
Better Beginnings 
Juvenile Crime 
Victim Witness 
CDBG 
Safe Routes to School 
Kids After School Program 

Total grants 

Nondepartmental: 
Contributions and subsidies 
Contingencies and miscellaneous 

Total nondepartmental 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total debt service 

Total expenditures 

Excess o f  revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Other Financing Uses: 
Transfers out: 

Solid Waste Management 
Capital Projects Fund 

Total other financing uses 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 
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Fund Balance, ending 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITLIRES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended June 30,2008 
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The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the Schedule of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual. 

1) Proposal - at least 60 days prior to June 30, the City Manager submits to City Council a proposed operating 
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2) Adoption - Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments on the proposed budget. Prior to July 1, 
the budget is legally adopted at the departmental level through passage of an appropriation ordinance by City 
Council. 

3) The City Manager is authorized to transfer amounts within departments, with any interdepartmental transfers 
being approved by City Council. During the year, $2,135,084 in supplemental appropriations were approved by 
City Council. These amendments consisted primarily of appropriations of prior year encumbrances, the 
appropriation of designated fund balance, and the appropriation of additional intergovernmental grants received 
during the year. 

4) Legal Compliance - Actual expenditures and operating transfers out may not legally exceed budget 
appropriations for each department. City Council adopts an annual budget for the General Fund. Its budget is 
adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
except for the recognition of encumbrances, the classification of certain transfers as expenditures, and the 
consideration of beginning fund balance as a budgetary resource. 
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CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibit I 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES, CONTRACT COMMITMENTS 
AND UNOBLIGATED BALANCE 
June 30,2008 

Proiect Name 

Revenues and Resources Expenditures and Contract Commitments 
Prior Transfers Uncollected Revised Prior Contract Unobligated 
Years Current In/(Out\ Future Budoet Years Current Commitment Balance 

General Government 
Allocable to complete projects: 

Emergency shelter - power modification 
Total 

Allocable to incomplete projects: 
Beautification committee/tourism 
Courts building needs assessment 
Library renovation 
Fire apparatus 
Boulevard redevelopment 

Total 

Total general government 

Recreational Facilities 

Allocable to incomplete projects: 
Facilities master plan 
Violet Bank Museum 
Appomattox River Greenway 
Vocational School Sport Center 
Senior citizen youth center 

Total 

Total recreational facilities 

Educational Facilities 

Allocable to complete projects: 
Asbestos abatementlrenovations CHHS 

Total 

Allocable to incomplete projects: 
Transfer to school CIP program 

Total 
Total educational facilities 



Streets and Bridges 

Allocable to complete projects: 
Boulevard widening 
Conduit Road drainage improvement 
Boulevard beautification 
Temple Avenue - 1-95 ramp 
Lynchburg Avenue reconstruction 
Longhorn Drive drainage 
Lafayette Avenue paving 

Total 

Allocable to incomplete projects: 
Highway construction - local share 
Stormwater drainage improvements 
Bruce Avenue drainage 
Boulevard widening 
Access road -transfer station 
Boulevard matching grant 
Yacht basin storm sewer 
Lexington storm sewer 

Total 

Total streets and bridges 

Utility Improvements 

Allocable to complete projects: 
Utility system line testing 

Total 

Allocable to incomplete projects: 
Waterline rehabilitation 

Total 

Total utility improvements 

Total Capital Projects 
Utility lmprovements Related Projects 
Non Project Related 

Total projects - general government 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibit J 

Page I SCHEDULE OF BONDS, LEASES AND OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
June 30,2008 

Effective Final 2008-09 
Interest Interest Date Maturity Principal Amount of Long-Term Liabilities 
Rate % Dates Issued Date Payment Authorized Issued Outstanding 

General Obligation Serial Bonds: 

General lmprovement Series 1996 
General lmprovement Series 1996 
General lmprovement Series 1996 
General lmprovement Series 1996 

General lmprovement Series 1998 
General lmprovement Series 1998 
General lmprovement Series 1998 
General lmprovement Series 1998 
General lmprovement Series 1998 
General lmprovement Series 1998 

General lmprovement Series 
General lmprovement Series 
General lmprovement Series 
General lmprovement Series 
General lmprovement Series 
General lmprovement Series 
General lmprovement Series 
General lmprovement Series 

General lmprovement Series 2002 
General lmprovement Series 2002 
General lmprovement Series 2002 
General lmprovement Series 2002 
General lmprovement Series 2002 

General lmprovement Series 2003 

General lmprovement Series 2004 

o, General lmprovement Series 2007 
P 

Total General Obligation Serial Bonds 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

SCHEDULE OF BONDS, LEASES AND OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
June 30,2008 
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Effective Final 2008-09 
Interest Interest Date Maturity Principal Amount of Long-Term Liabilities 
Rate % Dates Issued Date Payment Authorized Issued Retired Outstanding 

NoteslLease Payable: 

Chesterfield Avenue Property 2005 5.020% 811 10115104 08112108 fffffffFfffffffffF $ 3,970,300 $ 3,970,300 $ - $ 3,970,300 
Equipment Purchase 2006 4.560 Quarterly 09101106 0611511 1 25,671 129,837 129,837 49,219 80,618 

Total NoteslLease Payable 4,050,918 

Accrued Leave 
Retirement Incentive Program 1995 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 

Allocation of Long-Term 
Liabilities by Fund: 

General 
School 
Enterprise 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibi t  K 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30,2008 

School 
School Capital Total 

Operating Projects Governmental 
Fund Fund Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Due from primary government 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
Other 
Restricted cash 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to primary government 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Reserved for: 
Inventories 41,768 41,768 
Capital outlay 1,521,212 1,521,212 

Unreserved: 
Designated for encumbrances 524,693 524,693 
Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 1,802,178 1,802,178 
Undesignated 734,585 734,585 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 6,329,815 $ 2,195,688 $ 8,525,503 

Total fund balances $ 4,624,436 

Amounts reported for the School Board's governmental activities in the Statement of 
Net Assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Governmental capital assets $ 27,694,511 
Less: accumulated depreciation (1 2,960,067) 

Net capital assets 14,734,444 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. 

Compensated absences (824,254) 
Retirement incentive program (524,227) 

Net assets of  the School Board's governmental activities 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibit L 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

School 
School Capital Total 

Operating Projects Governmental 
Fund Fund Funds 

Revenues: 
Charges for services $ 557,939 $ - $ 557,939 
Use of money and property 97,462 97,462 
Miscellaneous 267,880 267,880 
Appropriation from primary government 18,143,261 5,187,534 23,330,795 
Intergovernmental 14,434,911 14,434,91 I 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Education: 

Administrative 
Instruction 
School plant 
Transportation 
Food service 
Purchase of textbooks 
Property, plant and materials 
Reimbursement to primary government 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 164,374 1,521,212 1,685,586 

Fund Balances, beginning 2,938,850 2,938,850 

Fund Balances, ending 

Net change in fund balances 

Reconciliation of amounts reported for governmental activities 
in the Statement of Activities: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated 
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays were more 
than depreciation in the current period. 

Expenditures for capital assets 
Less depreciation expense 

Excess of capital outlays over depreciation 

The net effect of miscellaneous transactions involving capital 
assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins and donations). 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Change in compensated absences 
Change in retirement incentive program 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibit M 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT -SCHOOL BOARD 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SCHOOL OPERKI'ING FUND 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Revenues: 
Revenue from local sources: 

Charges for services: 
Cafeteria 

Use of money and property: 
Interest on investments 

Miscellaneous 

Appropriation from primary government 

Total revenue from local sources 

Intergovernmental: 
Revenue from the Commonwealth of Virginia: 

Categorical aid: 
Basic school aid 
State sales tax 
Other 

Revenue from the federal government: 
Categorical aid: 

Title I Grant 
Title VI B Grant 
Other 

Total intergovernmental 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Education: 

Administration 
Instruction 
School plant 
Transportation 
Food service 
Purchase of textbooks 
Property, plant and materials 
Contingencies 
Reimbursement to primary government 

Total expenditures 

Net change in  fund balance 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending 

Variance With 
Original Final Final Budget 
Budget Budget Actual Over (Under) 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibit N 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABII-ITIES - SCHOOL BOARD 
AGENCY FUND 
June 30,2008 

School 
Activity 
Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Exhibit 0 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - SCHOOL BOARD 
AGENCY FUND 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Balance Balance 
Department July 1,2007 Additions Deductions June 30,2008 

SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 269,155 $ 722,148 $ 680,044 $ 31 1,259 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 269,155 $ 722,148 $ 680,044 $ 311,259 



STKTISTICAL SECTION 





CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

STATIS'TICAL SECTION 
CONTENTS 

The statistical section of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information 
as a context for understanding what the information presented in the financial statements, note disclosures 
and required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health. This information 
has not been audited by the independent auditor. 

Contents Tables 

Financial Trends 
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the City's financial performance and well being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the City's most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax, as well as other revenue sources. 5 -  10 

Debt Capacity 
These tables present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the City's current level of outstanding debt and the City's 
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic lnformation 
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 
reader understand the environment within which the City's financial 
activities take place. 

Operating lnformation 
These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the 
services the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial report for the relevant year. The City implemented 
GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003; tables presenting government-wide information include 
information beginning in that year. 





CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table I 

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT 
Last Six Fiscal Years ( I )  
(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Governmental activities: 
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total governmental activities net assets 

Business-type activities: 
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total business-type activities net assets 

Primary government: 
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total primary government net assets 

Component Unit 
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Total Component Unit $ 7,280,713 $ 7,695,218 $ 10,298,491 $ 10,362,969 $ 12,500,176 $ 18,010,399 

Total Reporting Entity 
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Reporting Entity 

Notes: 
2 

(1) The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003. 

(2) Component unit net asset components are included in this table due to public schools being a signficant portion 
of the City. In Virginia, the City issues debt to finance the construction of school facilities, sine the School Board 
does not have borrowing or taxing authority. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Last Six Fiscal Years ( I )  
(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 2 
Page I 

Fiscal Year June 30. 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Expenses: 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 4,574,346 $ 4,852,767 $ 7,321,447 $ 6,389,754 $ 6,631,282 $ 7,617,133 
Judicial 3,381,683 3,514,009 3,755,313 3,618,242 3,758,743 4,401,401 
Public safety 5,34931 3 7,140,873 5,972,139 6,611,272 6,603.707 7,446,556 
Public works 6,351,670 4,162,560 4,791,051 3,705,174 3,488,051 3,650,407 
Health and welfare 518,825 491,837 571,565 727,289 905,641 716,096 
Parks, recreation and cultural 1,830,344 1,778,567 600,181 2,049,025 1,755,411 2,350,085 
Community development 255,761 349,923 301,989 367,863 575,426 580,574 
Education 13,966,901 14,372,467 15,451,926 15,886,549 16,738,367 23,330.795 
Interest 843,306 773,455 790,506 972,251 91 1,350 1,136,041 
Grants 276,981 281 ,I 49 296,790 
Nondepartmental 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer 
Water 
Sewer 
Solid waste 

Total business-type activities 
Total government 

Program revenue: 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: 
Refuse collection 
Parks and recreation 
Other activities 

Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

Total governmental activities program revenue 

Charges for services: 
Water and sewer 
Water 
Sewer 
Solid waste 

Total business-type activities program revenues 

Total government program revenues 10,007,105 10,466,988 12,228,671 10,711,718 14,920,289 16,008,964 

Net (expense) revenue: rQ 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total government net expense 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Last Six Fiscal Years (1) 
(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

General revenues and other changes in net assets: 
Governmental activities: 

Taxes: 
General property taxes 
Local sales and use 
Food and lodging 
Other 

Intergovernmental, non-categorical aid 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

Table 2 
Page 2 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Changes in net assets: 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total primary government 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Last Six Fiscal Years ( 1 )  
(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Table 2 
Page 3 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Component Unit 
Expenses: 

Education 

Program Revenues 
Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 

Total program revenues 

Net expense (13,648,136) (14,100,082) (14,946,373) (16,098,182) (15,008,274) (18,185,914) 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets 
Contribution from primary government 13,865,339 14,292,025 14,484,413 15,886,549 16,738,367 23,330,795 
Use of money and property 16,543 7,948 22,084 70,338 283,982 97,462 
Miscellaneous 178,593 214,614 21 8,320 205,773 123,132 267,880 

Total general revenues 14,060,475 14,514,587 14,724,817 16,162,660 17,145,481 23,696,137 

Total component unit change 
in net assets 

Notes: 

(1) The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003. 

(2) Component unit change in net assets is included in this schedule due to School Board being a 
significant portion of the City. 

(3) In fiscal year 2006, the activities involved in trash collection were transferred from the General Fund to the 
4 
P Solid Waste Fund. 

(4) In fiscal year 2008, the Water and Sewer Fund was separated into two funds. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 3 

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

General Fund 
Reserved 
Unreserved: 

Designated 
Undesignated 

Total general fund $4,998,128 $ 4,440.127 $5,349,853 $5,679,603 $ 6,696,569 $ 7,666,053 $ 8,500,728 $ 8,527,366 $ 9,808,750 $ 9,826,537 

Other Governmental Funds 
Reserved $ 3,034,367 $ 1,150,237 $ 1,571,347 $ 1,844,780 $ 1,623,941 $ 1,149,211 $ 2,229,837 $ - $ - $ 
Unreserved: 

Designated: 
Capital Projects Fund 4,639,045 858,785 890,307 544,626 844,134 61 0,283 612,818 
Special Revenue Fund 2,240 58,222 

Undesignated: 
Capital Projects Fund 68,758 20,900 (2,595,874) (1,202,086) 477,883 (331,293) 5,208,410 
Special Revenue Fund 14,448 41,840 31,050 

Total other governmental funds 3,117,573 5,831,122 2,484,322 (692,872) 2,514,248 (52,875) 2,774,463 1,322,017 278,990 5,821,228 

Total governmental funds 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 4 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis o f  accounting) 

Revenues 
Taxes 
Other local taxes 
Fines and forfeitures 
Charges for services 
Permits, fees and licenses 
Use of money and property 
Intergovernmental 
Reimbursement from component unit 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
General government 
Judicial administration 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Parks, recreation and cultural 
Community development 
Education 
Grants 
Nondepartmental 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Bond issuance costs 

Capital outlays 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Issuance of debt 
Capital leases 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
4 
a Total other financing 

sources (uses), net 

Net change in fund balances 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Last Six Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Table 4 
Page 2 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Debt Service as a Percentage of Non-Capital Expenditures 

Primary Government 

Total Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 37,807,394 40,682,669 43,301,262 46,954,302 44,599,732 51,701,671 
Capital Outlay - Primary Government Only (1,216,776) (3,099,812) (3,226,624) (6,703,133) (4,353,934) (1,518,495) 
Non-Capital Expenditures $ 36,590,618 $ 37,582,857 $ 40,074,638 $ 40,251,169 $ 40,245,798 $ 50,183,176 

Debt Service as a Percentage of 
Non-Capital Expenditures - Primary 
Government Only 5.89% 6.50% 6.64% 7.73% 6.42% 5.65% 

Component Unit - Public Schools 

School Expenditures, excluding City 
Contribution 

Capital Outlay, Public Schools 
Non-Capital Expenditures 

Total reporting entity 

Total debt service 2,153,653 2,443,936 2,660,652 3,111,699 2,583,340 2,835,744 
Total non-capital expenditures $ 45,169,978 $ 47,617,528 $ 52,239,240 $ 52,763,514 $ 53,696,648 $ 64,748,298 

Debt Service as a Percentage of Non-Capital 
Expenditures - Total Reporting Entity 4.77% 5.1 3% 5.09% 5.90% 4.81% 4.38% 

The City implemented GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003. Therefore, ten years of data is not available but will be accumulated over time. 
Debt service as a percentage of non-capital expenditures is calculated only from fiscal year 2003 for that reason. 

In Virginia, the City issues debt to finance school projects because public schools do not have taxing or borrowing authority. 
Therefore, the debt service payments related to school projects are presented as debt service of the component unit. 
Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures for the total reporting entity more appropriately reflects the Virginia 
school debt requirement. 

4 

Prior to the implementation of GASB 34, the City's contribution to public schools was reported as a transfer out. Implementation 
of GASB 34 required that the contribution to public schools be reported as education expenditures. For comparability, fiscal year 
1999 through fiscal year 2002 have been restated to reflect contribution to public schools as education expenditures. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 5 

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 
Last Ten Calendar Years 

Real Property 
Residental Multi-Family Commercial Public Public 

Year Property(1) Property Property Service(2) Safety Total 

Notes: 

(1) Assessed at 100% of fair market value, which is estimated actual value. 

(2) Based on valuations established by the State Corporation Commission. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 6 

DIRECT TAX RATES 
Last Ten Calendar Years 
(Rate per $1,000 Assessed Value) 

Real Public Public 
Year Property Service Safety 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 7 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 
Current  Year and Ten Years A g o  
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2008 1999 

Percentage Percentage 
of Total City of Total City 

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value 

Southpark Mall, LLC 
Roslyn Farms Corporation 
Wal-Mart Properties, Inc. 
Roslyn Farms Associates LP 
Home Depot, USA 
Colonial Square, Inc. 
Faison-Colonial Retail Assoc., Etc. 
Southpark Hotel LLClHilton Garden 
Dunlop House 
Virginia Electric & Power Co. 
Verizon - Virginia Inc. 
J C Penney Prop., Inc. 
Dayton Hudson Corp. 
Roslyn Converters 

Total 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 8 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
Last Ten Calendar Years 
(Unaudited) 

Total Current Percent Delinquent 
Tax Tax of Levy Tax 

Year Levy Collections Collected Collections (2) 

Notes: 

(1) Based on tax year beginning January 1 and ending December 31. 

(2) Does not include penalties and interest. 

Total 
Total Collections 
Tax as Percent of 

Collections Current Levy 



C I N  OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 9 

TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY 
Last Ten Calendar Years 
(in thousands of dollars) 
(Unaudited) 

Apparel $ 31,441 $ 40,022 $ 44,326 $ 42,799 $ 44,509 $ 43,858 $ 49,014 $ 40,413 $ 85,969 $ 56,839 
Automotive 18,086 17,494 17,823 22,239 24,061 24,829 24,735 23,187 24,227 13,563 
Food 75,331 80,735 88,463 86,202 87,714 91,310 92,098 85,495 49,300 107,331 
Furniture, Home Furnishings and Equipment 19,775 20,045 19,117 42,726 45,764 51,901 52,337 31,649 57,665 55,986 
General Merchandise 246,155 227,605 250,949 248,094 254,681 264,190 269,381 227,277 234,775 295,155 
Machinery, Equipment and Supplies 3,773 4,257 5,706 6,684 6,696 6,877 8,608 6,228 42,413 46,438 
Miscellaneous 90,338 91,727 101,356 93,904 100,299 108,466 123,636 162,351 176,341 114,937 

Total 

City Direct Local Option Sales Tax 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 

Source: Virginia Department of Taxation 

Notes: 

(1) Retail sales information is not available on a fiscal year basis. 

(2) Retail sales information from the Virginia Department of Taxation starting on August 1, 2005 was changed to 
NAlCS codes and classifications may differ from prior reporting. 

(3) There is no overlapping government taxation. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 10 

TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY 
Calendar Years 2007 and 1998 
(taxable sales in thousands of dollars) 
(Unaudited) 

Calendar Year 2007 Calendar Year 1998 
Number Percentage Taxable Percentage Number Percentage Taxable Percentage 

Apparel 72 12.3 $ 56,839 8.2 56 9.5 $ 31,441 6.5 
Automotive 14 2.4 13,563 2.0 32 5.5 18,086 3.7 
Food 95 16.2 107,331 15.5 99 16.9 75,331 15.5 
Furniture, Home Furnishings and Equipment 28 4.8 55,986 8.1 43 7.3 19,775 4.1 
General Merchandise 67 11.4 295,155 42.8 59 10.1 246,155 50.8 
Machinery, Equipment and Supplies 23 3.9 46,438 6.7 23 3.9 3,773 0.8 
Miscellaneous 287 49.0 1 14,937 16.7 275 46.8 90,338 18.6 

Total 586 100.0 $ 690.249 100 587 100 $ 484.899 100 

City Direct Local Option Sales Tax 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 1 .O% 

Source: Virginia Department of Taxation. 

Note: 

(1) Due to confidentiality issues, the names of the ten largest revenue payers are not available. The categories presented are 
intended to provide alternative information regarding the sources of the City's revenue. Fiscal year information is not available. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 11 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE AND GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

General Lease Revenue General Total Percentage of Debt 
Obligation Note Capital Obligation Capital Primary Personal Per 

Fiscal Year Bonds Payable Leases Bonds Leases Government Income Capita 

General bonded debt outstanding: 

Percentage of 
General Actual Taxable Debt 

Obligation Value of Per 
Bonds Property Capita 

a, * Unavailable 
P 

Note: 

(1) Population data can be found in Table 13 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 12 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Assessed Value of Property $ 870,148,195 $ 928,555,584 $954,359,949 $1,039,769,702 $ 1  , I  03,330,570 $1,143,029,599 $1,169,215,592 $1,374,000,868 $ 1,406,530,770 $ 1,680,979,492 

Debt Limit, 10% of assessed value 
(statutory limitation) 87,014,820 92,855,558 95,435,995 103.976.970 11 0,333,057 114,302,960 116,921,559 137,400,087 140,653,077 168,097,949 

Amounts of Debt Applicable to 
Limit General Obligation Bonds 16,865,000 20,735,000 18,495.000 16,485,000 21,410,000 19,530,000 23,860,000 21,250,000 19,320,000 27,295,000 

Available Legal Debt Margin 70,149,820 72,120,558 76,940,995 87,491,970 88,923,057 94,772,960 93,061,559 11 6,150,087 121,333,077 140,802,949 

Total Net Debt Applicable to the 
Limit as a Percentage of Debt Limit 19.38% 22.33% 19.38% 15.85% 19.40% 17.09% 20.41% 15.47% 13.74% 16.24% 

Bonded Debt Per Capita 1,005 1,227 1,095 975 1,239 1,118 1,358 1,200 1,093 1.534 

Notes: 

(1) Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

(2) Population data can be found in Table 13. 

(3) Assessed value of property can be found in Table 5. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 13 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 
Last Ten Calendar Years 
(Unaudited) 

Per 
Personal Capita 

Fiscal Income Personal School Unemployment 
Year Population {in thousands) Income Enrollment Rate 

Sources: 

1 Weldon Cooper Center for Public Service. 
2 Bureau of Economic Analysis - combined area of City of Colonial Heights, City of Petersburg and Dinwiddie County. 
3 City of Colonial Heights Public Schools. 
4 Virginia Employment Commission. 
5 US Census 

* Unavailable 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 14 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year 1999 
Employer Employees Rank Employees Rank 

Wal-Mart 
Colonial Heights School Board 
City of Colonial Heights 
Colonial Heights Operation 
J. C. Penney Corporation, Inc. 
Ukrop's Super Markets 
Sears Roebuck & Company 
The Home Depot 
Red Lobster & Olive Garden 
Target Division of Dayton Huds Corp. 
May Department Stores Company 
Herbert L. Seal Etal 
Specialty Care Services Inc. 

Source: 

1 Virginia Employment Commission 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Table 15 

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
FunctionIProgram 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

General government: 
Management services: 

Clerk of Council 
City manager 
Human resources 
City attorney 

Total 

Tax collections: 
Assessor 
Commissioner of revenue 
Treasurer 

Total 

Finance: 
Administration 
Auditing 
Purchasing 

Total 

Information technology 

Board of elections 

Judicial Administration: 
Circuit court 
Commonwealth's attorney 
Sheriff 

Total 

Public Safety: 
Bureau of police 
Bureau of fire 
Communications 

Total 



Public Works: 
Administration 
Engineering 
Street maintenance 
Traffic engineering 
Building maintenance 
Solid waste management 
Fleet maintenance 

Total 

Parks, Recreation and Cultural: 
Parks and recreation 
Agency on aging 
Horticulture 
Museum 
Library 

Total 

Community Development: 
Planning 
Inspections 

Total 

Grants: 
Office on Youth 
Juvenile crime 
Victim witness 

Total 

Education: 
Teachers and administrators 
Other employees 

Total 

Total Full-Time Employees 

Source: 

1 City Adopted Budgets 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTlONlPROGRAM 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Table 16 

Fiscal Year June 30, 
FunctionlProgram 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

General Government: 
Registered voters 10,016 10,878 10,890 11,089 11,089 11,001 11,569 11,512 11,433 12,179 
Structures: 

Detached 5,797 5,797 5,797 5,855 5,929 5,966 6,057 6,057 6,140 6,153 
Duplex 298 298 298 177 180 180 183 183 180 180 
Multi-family 962 962 962 1,141 1,141 1,141 1,201 1,201 1,211 1,211 

Parcel with elderlyldisabled: 
Exemptions 231 235 226 261 280 286 284 293 325 31 6 

Judicial Administration: 
Average daily jail population 

Public Safety: 
Volunteers 

Education: 
Elementary 
Secondary 
Vocational buildings 

Library: 
Volumes in collection 

Community Development: 
Building permits issued - calendar 53 1 435 272 284 277 273 24 1 272 242 NIA 

Value 13,546,785 17,226,981 11,608,618 13,879,595 19,047,068 14,652,954 17,242,824 18,932,440 21,972,520 NIA 

Sources: 

1 Voters - Registrar 
2 Structures - City Assessor 
3 Elderly exemptions - Commissioner of the Revenue 
4 Average jail population - Riverside Regional Jail 
5 Volunteers - Department of Public Safety 
6 Education - Colonial Heights School Administration 
7 Library - Librarian 
8 Building permits - City Planner 



COMPLIANCE SECTION 





CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Page 1 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June  30,2008 

Federal 
Federal GrantorlState Pass-Through Grantor1 CFDA 

Program Title Number Expenditures 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE: 

Pass-throuqh pavments: 

Department of Aariculture and Consumer Services: 
Commodity Distribution 

Department of Education: 
Child Nutrition Cluster: 

School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 

Total Department of  Agriculture 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT: 

Direct payment: 

Office of Communitv Planninq and Development: 
Community Development Block Grants 

Total Department o f  Housing and Urban Development 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS, 
BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE: 

Pass-through pavments: 

Department of Criminal Justice: 
Byrne Formula Grant Program 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
Crime Victim Assistance 

Total Department o f  Justice, Office of  Justice Programs, 
Bureau of  Justice Assistance 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 

Pass-throuqh pavments: 

National His hwav Traffic Safety Administration: 
Highway Safety Funds 
Safe Routes to Schools 
State and Community Highway Safety 

Total Department of  Transportation 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Page 2 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITLIRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Federal 
Federal GrantorIState Pass-Through Grantor1 CFDA 

Program Title Number Expenditures 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION: 

Direct payments: 

Ofice of Elementary and Secondarv Education: 
Impact Aid 

Pass-throug h payments: 

1 
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
State Grants for Innovative Programs 
English Language Acquisition Grants 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 

Office of Special Education and Rehabilitative Services: 
Special Education Cluster: 

Special Education - Grants to States 
Special Education - Preschool Grants 

Office of Assistant Secretary for Vocational and Adult Education: 
Vocational Education Basic Grants to States 

Office of Safe and Drucr-Free Schools: 
State Grants 

Total Department of Education 

DEPARTMENT OF HOlVlELAND SECURITY: 

Pass-throuqh payments: 

Department of Emerqency Services: 
Homeland Security 
Assistance to Firefighters Grants 

Total Department of Homeland Security 

Total Federal Awards Expended 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation and Accountinq 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant 
activity of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia (City) and the component unit, City of Colonial 
Heights School Board, and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, 
or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

Federal Financial Assistance - The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Public Law 104- 
156) and OMB Circular A-133 define federal financial assistance as grants, loans, loan 
guarantees, property (including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest 
subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct appropriations or other assistance. 
Nonmonetary deferral assistance including food commodities is considered federal 
assistance and, therefore, is reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
Federal financial assistance does not include direct federal cash assistance to individuals. 

Direct Payments- Assistance received directly from the Federal government is classified as 
direct payments on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

Pass-through Payments - Assistance received in a pass-through relationship from entities 
other than the Federal government is classified as pass-through payments on the Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

Major Programs - The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133 
establish the criteria to be used in defining major programs. Major programs for the City 
were determined using a risk-based approach in accordance with OMB Circular A-I 33. 

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance - The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
(CFDA) is a government-wide compendium of individual federal programs. Each program 
included in the catalog is assigned a five-digit program identification number (CFDA 
IVumber), which is reflected in the accompanying schedule. 

Cluster of Programs - Closely related programs that share common compliance 
requirements are grouped into clusters of programs. A cluster of programs is considered as 
one federal program for determining major programs. The following are the clusters 
administered by the City: Child Nutrition Cluster and Special Education Cluster. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Note 2. NonCash Assistance 

The City participated in a federal program in which non-cash benefits are provided through the state 
to eligible program participants. 

Food Distribution Program (CFDA Number 10.555) -The value of food commodities was calculated 
using the U. S. Department of Agriculture's Food and Nutrition Service commodity price lists. The 
accompanying schedule includes commodity distributions of $52,613 for CFDA Number 10.555. 

Note 3. Other 

The City's Food Stamp and Health and Human Service federal programs are administered by the 
County of Chesterfield, Virginia (County). Since the County receives funds directly from the 
awarding agencies on behalf of the City and the County administers the programs entirely, the Food 
Stamp Program and Health and Human Services federal programs are not included in the City's 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. These expenditures are reflected in the County's 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Members of City Council 
City of Colonial Heights, Virginia 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia (City), as of 
and for the year ended June 30,2008, and have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 
2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications 
for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reportinq 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was forthe limited purpose described in 
the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as 
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we 
consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of 
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or 
report financial data reliably in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the 
City's financial statements that is more than inconsequential, will not be prevented or detected by 
the City's internal control. 



A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that 
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statementswill 
not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in 
the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily 
disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, 
we believe that the significant deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs as items 0841 and 08-02 to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. We also performed tests of 
compliance with the program specific requirements as set forth in the Specifications for Audits of 
Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia and the Virginia Department of Education. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions and specifications was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or 
other matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, which is 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 0843. 

The City's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule 
of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the City's response and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on it. 

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter 
dated December 15, 2008. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the City Council, management, the Auditor of 
Public Accounts, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Harrisonburg, Virginia 
December 15, 2008 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR 

PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Honorable Members of City Council 
City of Colonial Heights, Virginia 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the City of Colonial Heights, Virginia, (City) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Ofice of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 
A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns, 
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia that are applicable to 
each of its major Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. The City's major Federal 
programs are identified in the Summary of Independent Auditors' Results section of the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major Federal programs is the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's 
compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; ONlB Circular A-I 33, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and the Specifications for 
Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards, specifications and OMB Circular A-I 33 require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major Federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the City's compliance with those requirements, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal deterrnination on the City's compliance with 
those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. 



Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to Federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major Federal 
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control over compliance. 

A control deficiency in the City's internal control over compliance exists when the design or 
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a Federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or 
combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the City's ability to administer a Federal 
program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a Federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be 
prevented or detected by the City's internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that 
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a Federal program will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily'identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of City Council, management, the Auditor 
of Public Accounts, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Harrisonburg, Virginia 
December 15,2008 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

I. SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements: 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness identified d Yes No 
Significant deficiency identified that is not 
considered to be a material weakness Yes 4 None Reported 

Noncom~liance material to financial statements noted 7 yes No 

Federal awards: 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weaknesses identi.fied Yes d No 
Significant deficiency identified that is not 
considered to be a material weakness Yes d No 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 

Any audit .findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with section 
51 0(a) of Circular A-1 33? Yes d No 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA IV~~mber Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.01 0 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 

Special Education Cluster: 

84.027 Special Education - Grants to States 
84.173 Special Education - Preschool Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 4 No 
- 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Page 2 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE 
REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT 
AUDII-IIUG STANDARDS 

A. Material Weakness in lntemal Control 

08-01: Material Weakness in Internal Control over the Financial Reporting of Property 
Taxes 

Requirement: Complete and accurate supporting schedules and timely reconciliations must 
agree to the general ledger for accurate .financial reporting. Accounting tasks such as 
monthly/quarterly reconciliations, cross-checks and reviews play a key role in proving the 
accuracy of accounting data and financial information that comprise interim and year-end 
financial statements. 

Condition: In the process of performing our audit, we were provided with schedules 
attempting to reconcile the City's largest revenue source, property taxes. Upon receiving 
these schedules, it was noted that there were material differences included in the 
reconciliation that were categorized as unidentified differences, in both Real Estate and 
Personal Property taxes. Amounts are made available in the form of quarterly reports from 
the collecting office and are entered into the reconciliation, and an attempt is made to agree 
these amounts to the general ledger. However, at this point, if there are differences 
between reported collections and the general ledger, they are not investigated further. As 
noted, the differences were material amounts, and although some of the differences offset 
each other, classification errors are apparent. 

Effect: We observed that the differences noted above are considered satisfactory by the 
City, and there is little accountabilityfor attempting to identify these annual differences. We 
consider the lack of attempt in identifying these potentially material differences in the City's 
largest revenue source to be a material weakness. 

Recommendation: We strongly suggest that the collecting department and the reporting 
department work in concert to reconcile taxes timelier on a quarterly basis, in order to make 
an effort to identify these differences and correct them, prior to providing a reconciliation for 
audit. This may involve making adjustments to accounts more frequently during the year, 
and perforrr~ing more frequent reviews of the general ledger throughout the year. Inevitably, 
the accountability for the reconciliation of property taxes to the general ledger should be 
more clearly defined, and material differences need not be considered satisfactory. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
Page 3 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

II. FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE 
REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS (Continued) 

A. Material Weaknesses in Internal Control (Continued) 

08-02: Material Weakness in the Audit Preparedness of the School Board 

Requirement: Complete and accurate supporting schedules and reconciliations should be 
available in a timely manner for closing and reconciling year-end amounts. 

Condition: In performing our audit, we were informed during the scheduled fieldwork that 
schedules and reconcilia.tions for accruals and capital assets were not available. These 
year-end analyses were not prepared in accordance with the time schedule previously 
agreed upon. 

Effect: The condition above caused delays in the completion of the year-end 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. We consider the lack of timely supporting 
schedules to be a material weakness. 

Recommendation: We strongly suggest that the School Board develop a formal year-end 
closing schedule that indicates specific reconciliations and analyses, along with 
corresponding time requirements. Strict adherence to this schedule should be required, 
which will allow for the year-end close and reconciliation to be a much less time-consuming 
and arduous process. 

B. Compliance Finding 

08-03: Submission of Unclaimed Property of the School Board 

During the course of our audit, it was noted that the School Board did not submit the funds 
or other property presumed abandoned (i.e. unclaimed property), as required by the Uniform 
Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act (Chapter 1 1 .I {Section 55-21 0.1 et.seq.1 of Title 55 of 
the Code of Virginia) as of year-end. This report must be filed with the Treasurer of the 
Commonwealth annually, and per our review, this process was not completed. 

Ill. FINDINGS AND QUESTIOhIED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS 

None 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 
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CORREC'TIVE ACTION PLAN 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

Identifying Number: 

Findinq: 

Complete and accurate supporting schedules and timely reconciliations for property taxes that agree 
to the general ledger were not provided. 

Corrective Actions Taken or Planned: 

The City has instituted direct posting of tax revenues to the general ledger system, which should 
help in the sited reconciliation comment. Management understands the need for timely 
reconciliation of tax revenues and will monitor this procedure. 

Identifyiug Number: 

Finding: 

Schedules and reconciliations for accruals and capital assets were not available at the 
commencement of fieldwork as previously agreed upon. 

Corrective Actions Taken or Planned: 

The trial balance and related schedules were complete at the time of scheduled fieldworkexcept for 
the capital asset schedules. However, the schedules were not provided to the auditors until one 
week later because management wanted to perform a final review of the work product to ensure 
accuracy and proper classification between accounts payable and encumbrances. This final review 
was delayed due to unanticipated issues requiring management's attention. School Board 
management recognizes the auditors' need for timely supporting schedules and will adhere to a 
formal year-end closing schedule that delineates specific schedules/analysis along with a 
corresponding timeline. 
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

ldentifyinq Number: 

08-03 

Findinq: 

The School Board did not submit the funds or other property presumed abandoned (i.e. unclaimed 
property), as required by the Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act (Chapter 11 .I {Section 
55-21 0.1 et. seq.) of Title 55 of the Code of Virginia) as of year-end. 

Corrective Actions Taken or Planned: 

The School Board management will establish procedures to perform this function in the future. 



CITY OF COLONIAL HEIGHTS, VIRGINIA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
Year Ended June 30,2008 

The prior year audit findings, as reported in the prior year audit's Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs have been fully corrected as noted below. 

FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

A. Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control 

07-01 Approval of Journal Entries 

Corrective action taken 

07-02 Material Weakness in lntemal Control over Financial Reporting 

Corrective action taken 

B. Compliance Finding 

07-03 Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Expenditures 

Corrective action taken 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS 

07-04 Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

The City has put a process in place to gather the information necessary to provide a SEFA at 
year-end. 


